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To,
The Manager Listing

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd
Vibgyor Towers, 4™ Floor,

Plot No. 62 C, G Block,Opp Trident Hotel,
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai
PIN: 400098

SUBJECT: Notice of 38th alongwith Annual Report of the Company for the financial year
2022-23

Dear Sir,

This is to inform you that 38" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Saturday, 30" September, 2023 at 12:30 P.M. at the registered office of the company situated
at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), we are submitting
herewith Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of AGM for the Financial Year 2022-
23 which is being sent through electronic mode to the Members.

The Annual Report containing the Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s website and can be
accessed at www.kumarautocast.com

This is for your information & Record.
Thanking you,
Yours faithfully
For KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
AJAY KUMAR s ciamed by MAY

Date: 2023.09.07 16:28:13
SO0D
AJAY KUMAR SOOD
(Whole Time Director)
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 38™Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kumar Autocast
Limited will be held on Saturday the 30" day of September, 2023 at 12:30 P.M. at the registered office
of the company situated at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab to transact the

following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEM NO.1: ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS, BALANCE SHEET, REPORT
OF DIRECTOR’S AND AUDITOR’S FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 31ST MARCH, 2023
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31° March, 2023, Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended on that date, together with Report of the Auditor’s and Director’s thereon.

ITEM NO.2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ASHISH KUMAR SOOD

To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (DIN: 00672179), Whole Time Director,
who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer

himself for re-appointment.

ITEM NO.3: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. AJAY KUMAR SOOD

To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685585), Whole Time Director, who
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself

for re-appointment.
ITEM NO.4: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ARUN KUMAR SOOD
To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685937), Managing Director, who

retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself

for re-appointment.




SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 5: BLANKET APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of Listing Agreement executed with the Stock
Exchanges (including any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof), and also pursuant to the
consent of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolutions passed in their respective
meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby for entering into the following proposed Related
Party Transactions at Arm Length Price with respect to sale and purchase of goods and raw material by
and from Kumar Autocast Limited for the financial year 2022-23 upto the maximum per annum amounts

as appended in table below:

Sr. Name of the | Relationship Maximum Value of Transaction

No Related Party per Annum

1 Kumar Exports | Directors having Significant Interest 60 Crores
& Kumar
Export

Industries Pvt.

Ltd.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to
approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment
including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give
effect to this resolution.

By Order of the Board

For Kumar Autocast Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2023
Sd/-



(Ajay Kumar Sood)
Whole Time Director
(DIN: - 00685585)

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana, PB

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy,
in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The

Blank Proxy form is enclosed.

2. In Compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listed
Obligations And Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company has provided a facility to
the members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The facility for voting through ballot paper, will also be
made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes

again.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and

vote in their behalf at the Meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or

shareholder.

5. A statement giving the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment and appointment

under Item No. 2, 3, 4, of the accompanying Notice is annexed herewith in explanatory statement.
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6. Members are requested to intimate their queries, if any, related to accounts at least seven days in

advance of meeting so that information can be made available and furnished at meeting.

7. All documents referred to in the notice, unless otherwise specifically stated will be available for
members for inspection at the registered office of the Company between 02.00 pm to 04.00 pm from the
date hereof upto the date of Annual General Meeting.

8. The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from Saturday , the 23" of

September, 2023 to Saturday, 30" of September, 2023 (Both Days inclusive).

9. Mr. Harshit Arora proprietor of M/s Harshit Arora & Associates has been appointed as scrutinizer
for providing the report on results of poll/vote for the resolution passed during the AGM.

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in physical
form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Company Skyline Financial Services Private

Limited.

11. The Result of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company will be declared within 48 working
hours of Conclusion of AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer Report shall be placed on

Company’s website and on the website of CDSL and will be communicated to the stock exchanges.

12. M/s Harshit Arora & Associates, Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner (including the ballot forms received from
members who do not have access to the e-voting process). The scrutinizer shall within a period of three
working days from the conclusion of e-voting period, unblock the votes in presence of at least two
witnesses not in employment of the company and make a report of the votes cast in favour or against, if

any, forthwith to the chairman of the company.

13. In support of the Green Initiative, your Company proposes to send the documents like Notice calling
the General Meetings and Annual Report containing Financial Statements, Director’s Report etc and
other communications in electronic form. We request you to update your email address with your
Depository Participant/Company/RTA to ensure that the Annual Report and other communications

reach you on your preferred email.



14. The Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent through electronic mode only to the members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s), unless any member has requested
for a physical copy of the report. The members who have not registered their email addresses, physical

copies of the Annual Report 2022-23 are being sent by permitted mode.



(iv)

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on 27" September, 2023 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 29" September, 2023
(5:00 p.m.). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23" September, 2023 may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(ii)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

(iii)  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a
negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on _e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.




Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in

Demat mode
with CDSL

D

2)

3)
4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Mpyeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

D

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
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NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login
through

their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a

request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact
at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v)  Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding
in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com .
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2)

3)

4)
5

6)

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual
and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy

Bank format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in
Details order to login.
OR  Date o If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
of Birth company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
(DOB) Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (3).
(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT?” tab.
(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN 230906093 <KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED> on which you
choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM?” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in
the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for

which they wish to vote on.
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o The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz; asood@kumarautocast.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not

uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- Please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending EGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mpr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33.
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.

Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.comTelephone No: 0161-2671428

CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100
www.kumarautocast.com

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013:

ITEM NO. 2,3 & 4 OF THE ORDINARY BUSINESS

INFORMATION AND DETAILS REGARDING DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN
THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Name of the Director ASHISH AJAY KUMAR | ARUN KUMAR
KUMAR SOOD SOOD SOOD

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00672179 00685585 00685937

Date of Birth 28/01/1959 26/08/1954 13/12/1948

Nationality Indian Indian Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 01/10/2002 01/10/2007 01/10/2002

Qualification B.tech LLB MA Economics

No. of Shares Held 1640100 1352280 3525900

List of Directorships held in other NIL NIL NIL

Companies (excluding foreign, private

and Section 8 Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit NIL NIL NIL

and Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committees across Public Companies

Relationship with other Directors Related to Mr. Related to Mr. Related to Mr.
Ajay Kumar Arun Kumar Ajay Kumar
Sood and Mr. Sood and Mr. Sood and Mr.
Arun Kumar Ashish Kumar Ashish Kumar
Sood Sood Sood

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the company/their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 2, 3 and 4.
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By Order of the Board
For Kumar Autocast Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2023

Sd/-

(Ajay Kumar Sood)

Whole Time Director

(DIN: - 00685585)

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana, Pb

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.
Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.comTelephone No: 0161-2671428
CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100
www.kumarautocast.com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their 38" Annual Report on the affairs of the

Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS.

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below:

(Amt. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from operations(Gross) 4734.37 4306.59
Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 235.03 -14.88
Less: Interest & Financial Expenses 50.30 37.99
Profit Before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) 184.73 -52.87
Less: Depreciation 51.23 60.00
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Profit Before Tax (PBT) 133.50 -112.87
Less: Current Tax 10.66 -
Earlier year 0.21 0.04
Deferred Tax Charge (3.30) -2.72
Add: Deferred Tax Assets - -
Profit For The Period and After Tax (PAT) 125.93 -110.19
Other Comprehensive Income for the year net of Tax 1.18 -3.24
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 127.11 -113.43
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
-Basic 1.21 -1.06
-Diluted 1.21 -1.06
Balance Available for Appropriation 127.11 -113.43
Less: Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - -
Tax on Proposed Dividend - -
Transfer to General Reserve - -
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 127.11 -113.43

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods
upto and including the year ending 31* March 2023, the company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms
of Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting

standards on an ongoing basis.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

PRODUCTION & SALES REVIEW:
16




During the year, the Revenue from operations was Rs. 4734.37 Lacs as against Rs. 4306.59 Lacs in
the previous year. The Company earned other income of Rs. 10.96 Lacs during the year as against Rs.
5.83 Lacs during last year.

PROFITABILITY:

During the current year, the Company incurred profit before depreciation, interest and tax of Rs. 235.03
Lacs as against PBDIT of Rs. -14.88 Lacs in the previous year. After providing for depreciation of Rs.
51.23 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 60.00 Lacs), the profit after tax was Rs. 125.93 Lacs as against loss of
Rs. -110.19 Lacs last year.

B. RESOURCE UTILISATION:

FIXED ASSETS:

The net fixed assets as at 31* March, 2023 were Rs. 404.54 Lacs as against previous year’s fixed assets
of Rs. 443.58 Lacs. During the year, there was addition of fixed assets amounting to Rs. 12.18 Lacs
Previous Year Rs. 2.71 Lacs.

CURRENT ASSETS:

The net current assets as on 31* March, 2023 were Rs.1956.17 Lakhs as against Rs. 1658.21 Lakhs in
the previous year.

C. FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND LIQUIDITY:

Management believes that the Company’s liquidity and capital resources are sufficient to meet its
expected working capital needs and other anticipated cash requirements. The position of liquidity and
capital resources of the Company is given below: -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

(Amt in Lakhs.)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Beginning of the Year (221.82) (49.63)
End of the Year (360.12) (221.82)
Net Cash provided/(used) by:
- Operating Activities (63.43) (57.68)
- Investing Activities (6.89) 2.54
- Financing Activities (67.99) (117.05)

3. DIVIDEND
17




The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend
for the year 2022-23.

4. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this
Annual Report as ANNEXUREI.

5. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (¢) of the Companies Act,
2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the Assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that Directors’ have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

6. COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT

The Audit Reports and the qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimers are self explanatory
if any made:

(i) By the auditor in his report; and

(i1) By the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report.

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details of material
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10.

11.

12.

contracts/ arrangements/ transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31st March,2023 is annexed
hereto in Form AQC-2 and forms part of this report as ANNEXURE-II.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

NIL amount is transferred to the General Reserve.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

In accordance with the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 company has not having
any unpaid dividend or excess share application amount in the book of accounts. As company has not
declared any dividend in the previous year, hence no amount is transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company occurred between
the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in our Company. Efforts are made to
optimize the energy cost while carrying out the manufacturing operations. Particulars with respect to
conservation of energy and other areas as per Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are annexed hereto and form part of this report as ANNEXURE III
and is attached to this report.

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the
said provisions as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

14. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

15. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE

WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company.
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16. DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year 2022-23.

17. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

As Company has not done any one time settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure is
required.

18. DETAILS OF MONEY ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTOR

During the period under review, the Company has not accepted money in the form of unsecured loan from
the director or relative of the director of the Company.

19. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

20. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amt. in Lacs)

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Revenue from 4734.37 4306.59 3799.69 3492.42 4380.90
operations(Gross)
TOTAL INCOME 4745.33 4312.42 3799.69 3492.42 4380.90
Earnings before 235.03 (14.88) 256.32 293 318.84
Depreciation,
Finance Cost & Tax
expenses (EBDIT)
Less: Depreciation & 51.23 60.00 60.74 55.85 51.17
Amortization

Finance Cost 50.30 37.99 46.94 47.93 52.14
PROFIT FOR THE 125.93 (110.19) 114.61 136.22 156.86
YEAR
Equity Dividend% - - - - -
Dividend payout - - - - -
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21.

22,

23.

24.

Equity Share Capital 1037.40 1037.40 1037.40 518.70 518.70
Equity Share - - - - -
Suspense Account
Equity Share - - - - -
warrants
Reserves & Surplus 320.22 195.48 302.42 722.31 586.71
Net Worth 1357.62 1232.88 1339.82 1241.01 1105.41
Borrowings (Long 614.8 454.09 534.52 434.95 680.60
term & Short term)
Gross Fixed Assets 759.85 747.68 744.96 673.19 627.42
Net Fixed Assets 404.54 443.58 500.88 483.97 494.03
Investments - - - - -
Face Value Per Share 10 10 10 10 10
EPS(Basic&Diluted) 1.21 (1.06) 1.10 2.63 3.02
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted and does not intend to accept any deposits from the public. As at 31%
March, 2023 there are no outstanding/unclaimed deposits from the public.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any one which may fall under the
ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of
every women working with the Company. The Policy framed by the Company in this regard provides for
protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such
complaints.

PARTICULARS NO. OF COMPLAINTS TO PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT
COMMITEE

Number of Complaints pending as on beginning of the financial year NIL

Number of Complaints filed during the financial year NIL
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25.

26.

27.

Number of Complaints pending as on the end of the financial year NIL

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has well defined internal control system. The Company takes abundant care to design,
review and monitor the working of internal control system. Internal audit in the organization is an
independent appraisal activity and all significant issues are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee
of the Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or
operation were observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company ensure to evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices
diligently, not just to boost long-term shareholder value, but also to respect rights of the minority. We
consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding the operations
and performance, leadership, and governance of the Company.

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report for F.Y 2022-23 is as
follows:-

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business.

The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors. Usually, meetings of the
Board are held in Registered Office, Ludhiana to discuss the complex business strategies. The Agenda
of the Board / Committee meetings is circulated at least a week prior to the date of the meeting. The
Agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at
the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision.

The Board met NINE (09) times in financial year 2022-23 viz., on the following dates:

S. No. Date of Board meeting Directors present in the
Board Meeting
1. 19-05-2022 7
2. 30-05-2022 7
3. 13-07-2022 7
4. 13-08-2022 7
5. 07-09-2022 5
6. 12-11-2022 6
7. 29-12-2022 6
8. 11-02-2023 6
9. 01-03-2023 3
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The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The details of attendance
of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

S. No. Name of Director Board Meetings
No. of No. of No. of
meetings held | meetings | meetings
entitled | attended
to attend
1. ASHISH SOOD 9 9 9
2. AJAY KUMAR SOOD 9 9 9
3. ARUN KUMAR SOOD 9 9 9
4. RAKESH DHANDA 9 9 9
5. NEHA SOOD 9 4 4
6. ARAVIND PRASAD 9 4 4
7. SHREY BHUTANI 9 9 9
8. RITU MEHRA 9 4 4

A. DIRECTORS

i

ii.

iii.

APPOINTMENTS

INDEPENDENT/WOMEN DIRECTOR

e Ms. Ritu Mehra (DIN: 09445664) has been appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company to hold the office for a term of five years w.e.f. 30"September, 2022.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The Company has received the necessary declarations from Independent Director in accordance
with Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, that he meets the criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, there has been
no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent directors of the
Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience (including
proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) of all
Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent
Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood
(DIN. 00685585), Whole time Director, Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685937), Managing
Director and Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (DIN: 00672179) Whole Time Director of the Company
retires by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

RESIGNATION

Mr. Aravind Prasad (DIN: 08204757) and Ms. Neha Sood (DIN: 08126563) have resigned
from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 07.09.2022.
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B. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of section 203
of Companies Act, 2013.

C. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS

As a practice, all new Directors (including Independent Directors) inducted to the Board go through a
structured orientation programme. Presentations are made by Senior Management giving an overview
of the operations, to familiarize the new Directors with the Company’s business operations. The new
Directors are given an orientation on the products of the business, group structure and subsidiaries,
Board constitution and procedures, matters reserved for the Board, and the major risks and risk
management strategy of the Company. Visits to plant locations are organized for the new Directors to
enable them to understand the business better.

D. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4)of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of
its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit,
Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The performance evaluations of all the
independent Directors have been done by the entire board excluding the director being evaluated. On
the basis of the performance evaluation done by the board it shall be determined whether to extend or
continue their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires.

28. BOARD COMMITTEES
A. AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.

The Audit and Risk Management committee after reconstitution comprises of three non executive directors
i.e. Sh. Shrey Bhutani, Sh. Rakesh Dhanda, Sh. Aravind Prasad and one executive director Sh. Ajay
Kumar Sood. Sh. Shrey Bhutani is the Chairperson of the said committee.. The Committee met Five
times, during the year under review.

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee after reconstitution consists of three non-executive directors
i.e. Sh. Shrey Bhutani ,Sh. Rakesh Dhanda, and Smt. Ritu Mehra. Sh. Shrey Bhutani is the
Chairperson of the said committee. The Committee has formulated policy relating to appointment of
Directors, Payment of Managerial remuneration, Director’s qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) & (4)of Companies
Act, 2013 which was subsequently approved by board of Directors. The Committee met once a year, during
the year under review.

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors after reconstitution comprises of three
non executive directors i.e. Sh. Shrey Bhutani ,Sh. Rakesh Dhanda, and Smt. Ritu Mehra and one
executive director Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood. Sh. Shrey Bhutani is the Chairperson of the said committee.
The Committee met once a year during the year under review.

29. POLICIES

A. VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a
“Vigil Mechanism” incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the Listing Agreement for
employees and directors of the Company, for expressing the genuine concerns of unethical behavior,
frauds or violation of the codes of conduct by way of direct access to the Chairman/Chairman of the
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns.

The vigil Mechanism/ whistle blower policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII(ii) and also
available at the company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title
Investor Section — Policies.

B. REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated the Nomination &
Remuneration policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration includes the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters as provided under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed
thereto and form part of this Report as ANNEXURE V.

The criterion of making payments to non-executive directors/ remuneration policy is annexed thereto
and form part of this Report as ANNEXURE VIII (iii) and is available at the company’s website link
https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.htmlunder the title Investor Section — Policies.

C. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Audit & Risk Management Committee has formulated Risk Management Policy of the Company
which has been subsequently approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The aim of risk
management policy is to maximize opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity. The policy
includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting,
which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

The risk management policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (iv) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

D. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

Related Party Transaction Policy, as formulated by the Company defines the materiality of related party
transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing with Related Party Transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered with related parties as

25




defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2022-23 were mainly in the Ordinary
Course of business and on an arm's length basis. Prior approval of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any Related Party Transaction as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

. CODE OF CONDUCT

The company has its Code of Conduct which extends to all directors and senior employees of the
company which aims at maintaining highest standards of business conduct in line with the Ethics of the
Company, provides guidance in difficult situations involving conflict of interest & moral dilemma and
ensures compliance with all applicable laws. All senior employees have to read and understand this
code and agree to abide by it.

The code of conduct forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII(v) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The equity shares of Kumar Autocast Limited (“the Company”) are listed on Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India. As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, the Company is required to formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy which shall be
disclosed in its Annual Report and on its website. The dividend distribution shall be in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other legislations governing
dividends and the Articles of Association of the Company, as in force and as amended from time to
time. The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) has approved the Dividend Distribution
Policy of the Company (‘the Policy”) which endeavors to enhance stakeholder value for its investors
and at the same time tries to ensure the right balance between the quantum of dividend paid and the
amount retained for various business purposes. The Board will recommend dividend distribution based
on various internal and external factors, while striving for fairness, consistency and sustainability.

The dividend distribution policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (vi) and also available at
the company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor
Section — Policies.

. MATERIALITY POLICY

The Policy is framed by the Board of Directors of Kumar Autocast Limited in line with the provisions
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’):

- to provide an overall governance framework for determination of materiality of events /information;

- to ensure timely and adequate disclosures of material events / information fully, fairly, correctly and
transparently to the Stock Exchange(s), in pursuance with the Listing Regulations, to enable present and
potential investors to take informed decision/s with respect to their investment in the Company.
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The Materiality policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (vii) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

30. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

According to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors), Rules, 2014 M/s Vinay &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
company for a period of Five years from the conclusion of 37" Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 42" AGM at a remuneration as approved by Chairman of the company.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s Harshit Arora, Company Secretary in Practice, was appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company by the Board of Directors for the financial year 2022-23.
The Secretarial Auditors of the Company have submitted their Report in Form No. MR-3 as required
under Section 204, of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31* March, 2023. The
Report forms part of this report as ANNEXURE IV.

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR:
M/s J.S Bahl & Co, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company
pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Board of Directors to
conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company and maintain internal control
systems of the Company.

31. SHARES
A. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

BONUS SHARES

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme.

32. HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
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33.

34.

35.

The Company continues to lay emphasis on building and sustaining an excellent organization climate
based on human performance. Performance management is the key word for the company. Number of
Employees as on 31* March, 2023 were 214.

Pursuit of proactive policies for industrial relations has resulted in a peaceful and harmonious situation on
the shop floors of the various plants.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The disclosures in respect of managerial remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
hereto and form part of this report as ANNEXURE VI.

None of the employee of the Company receives salary of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum or Rs. 8,50,000/-
per month or more during the Financial Year 2022-23 as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) Companies (Appointment
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any Holding or

Subsidiary Company.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

Your company is listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (formerly known as MCX Stock
Exchange Ltd.) thereby having its Shares Listed on Recognized Stock Exchange with nationwide
terminals.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the
Companies Act 2013. The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies
Act 2013.

A. OTHER DISCLOSURES

36.

The other disclosures relating to details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, structures
imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years; If any, have been mentioned in Secretarial Audit
Report for the FY 2022-23, given as Annexure-VI below.
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Dated: 07.09.2023
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood

(Wholetime Director)

DIN: 00685585

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-
Arun Kumar Sood
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00685937

House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1
Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB
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ANNEXURE 1 - EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

(Referred to Paragraph 17 under "Annual Return" section of our Report of even date)

FORM NO. MGT 9

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN L27101PB1985PLC006100
Registration Date 09/01/1985
Name of the Company KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited By Shares

Non-govt company

Address of the Registered office & contact
details

C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana, Punjab
141003.

Telephone No: 0161-267142

Whether listed company

Listed

Name, Address & contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd

D — 153A, 1% Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1,
New Delhi — 110020

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total
services Product/service turnover
of the
company
1
Casting 243-Casting of metals 100%




II1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
the Company Subsidiary shares Section
/ Associate held
NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(1) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholder
s

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

[As on 31-March-2022]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

[As on 31-March-2023]

Demat

Physical

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

% of
Total
Shares

Physical Total

%
Change
during
the year

A.
Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

7513680

- | 7513680

72.43%

7513680

- | 7513680 | 72.43%

b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub
A)@

Total

7513680

- | 7513680

72.43%

7513680

-| 7513680 | 72.43%

(2) Foreign

a) NRI




Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

¢) Bodies
Corp.

d) Any other

Sub Total
A)®2

TOTAL (A)

7513680

- | 7513680

72.43%

7513680

- | 7513680

72.43%

B. Public Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year
[As on 31-March-2022]

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the

[As on 31-March-2023]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physic

Total
al

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FlIs

Capital Funds

h) Foreign Venture

1) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-




2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in upto Rs. 2lakh

42115

543900

586015

5.65%

42115

543900

586015

5.65%

ii) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
excess of Rs 2 lakh

168000

2106300

2274300

21.92%

168000

2106300

2274300

21.92%

c¢) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians

Overseas
Bodies

Corporate

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Resident Indian HUF

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Sub-total (B)(2):-

210120

2650200

2860200

27.57%

210120

2650200

2860320

27.57%

Total Public (B)

210120

2650200

2860200

27.57%

210120

2650200

2860320

27.57%




C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholde the year [As on 31-March-2023] o,
rs [As on 31-March-2022] Change
% of %of | during
. . the year
Demat | Physical Total Total Demat | Physical Total Total
Shares Shares
C. Shares - - - - - - - - -
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Total 7723800 2650200 10374000 100.00% 7723800 2650200 | 10374000 100.00% -
(A+B+C)
(i1) Shareholding of Promoter
Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
the year year
%
% of @ % of change
o % of .
SN Shareholder’s Name Yo of total |  Shares total Shares during
No. of | Shares of | Pledged/ No. of Shares Pledged / the
Shares the encumbere | Shares of the encumbere year
company | d to total comban d to total
shares pany shares
1 Arun Kumar Sood 3525900 33.99% 0.00 | 3525900 33.99% 0.00 -
2 Ajay Kumar Sood 1352280 13.04% 0.00 | 1352280 13.04% 0.00 -
3 Ashish Kumar Sood 1640100 15.81% 0.00 | 1640100 15.81% 0.00 -
4 Shama Sood 569100 5.49% 0.00 | 569100 5.49% 0.00 -
5 Alka Sood 2100 0.02% 0.00 2100 0.02% 0.00 -
6 Seema Sood 424200 4.09% 0.00 | 424200 4.09% 0.00 -




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
. Reaso
Particulars Date n
No. of % of total % of total
No. of shares
shares shares shares
At th inning of th
¢ beginning of the 7513680 72.43% 7513680 72.43%
year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 7513680 72.43% 7513680 72.43%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
For each of the Top Date Reaso
10 shareholders n
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares shares shares
Raghubir Singh
Panchal
At the beginning of 424200 4.09% 424200 4.09%
the year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 424200 4.09% 424200 4.09%
Sh. Paramjit Singh
At the beginning of 210000 2.03% 210000 2.02%
the year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 210000 2.03% 210000 2.02%




Smt. Rajinder Kaur

At the beginning of
the year

172200

1.66%

172200

1.66%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

172200

1.66%

172200

1.66%

Sh. Preet Mohinder
Singh

At the beginning of
the year

168000

1.62%

168000

1.62%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

168000

1.62%

168000

1.62%

Sh. Vinod Sagar

At the beginning of
the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Smt. Renu Sharma

At the beginning of
the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Sh. Bikram Singh

At the beginning of

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%




the year

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Sh. Surinder Abrol

At the beginning of
the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Sh. Ramesh Kumar
Sharma

At the beginning of
the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

10

Sh. Ashwani Khanna

At the beginning of
the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the Cumu.latlve .
. beginning of the vear Shareholding during
Shareholding of each egl g y th
Reaso € year
SN Directors and each Key Date n
Managerial Personnel No. of % of total No. of % of
shares shares shares (el
shares

Arun Kumar Sood
At th inni f th

e beginning of the 35,25,900 33.99% | 35,225,900 | 33.99%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 35,25,900 33.99% | 35,25,900 33.99%
Ajay Kumar Sood
At the beginning of the 13,52,400 13.04% | 13,52,280 | 13.04%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 13,52,400 13.04% | 13,52,280 13.04%
Ashish Kumar Sood
At th inni f th

e beginning of the 16,40,100 15.81% | 16,40,100 | 15.81%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 16,40,100 15.81% | 16,40,100 15.81%
Pranav Khanna
At th inni f th

¢ beginning of the 42,000 0.40% | 42,000 |  0.40%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 42,000 0.40% 42,000 0.40%
Rakesh Dhanda
At th inni f th

¢ beginning of the 109200 1.05% | 109200 |  1.05%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 109200 1.05% 109200 1.05%

*Other directors and KMP'’s do not have any shareholding in the company as on 31.03.2023




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt in Lakhs)
Secured Loans Total
Particulars excluding deposits Unsecured Deposits T v
Loans
(in Lacs) (in Lacs)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
1) Principal Amount 454.09 - 454.09
i) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not i i
due
Total (i+ii+iii) 454.09 - 454.09
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition
Loan Taken 160.71 - 160.71
Interest On Loan - - -
Reduction
Loan Repaid 0.00 - 0.00
Net Change 160.71 - 160.71
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
1) Principal Amount 614.8 - 614.8
i1) Interest due but not paid - - -
ii1) Interest accrued but not i i
due
Total (i+ii+iii) 614.8 - 614.8




VL.

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

SL.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager ) (in

lacs)

Total
Amount (in
lacs)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Arun Kumar

45.17

Ajay Kumar

45.17

Ashish Kumar

45.17

135.51

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- Others, specify...

Others, please specify (Medical
Reimbursement)

2.40

2.89

1.08

6.37

Total (A)

47.57

48.06

46.25

141.88

B. Remuneration to other directors:

S1. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

Total (2)




Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD

(Amt. in INR Lacs)

SI. no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company CFO Total
Secretary

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section

17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

N/A

2.35 5.50 7.85

Stock Option

N/A

N/A N/A -

98]

Sweat Equity

N/A

N/A N/A -

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

N/A

N/A N/A -

Others, please specify

Total

2.35 5.50 7.85

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority[RD Appeal made. If
companies description Punishment/ /NCLT/Court] any(give details)
Act Compounding fees
imposed
A. Company
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. Directors
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil




| Compounding | Nil | Nil | Nil

| Nil | Nil

1.

Dated: 07.09.2023
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood

(Wholetime Director)

DIN: 00685585

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sood

(Managing Director)

DIN: 00685937

House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1

Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB

ANNEXURE’ID

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party 1. NIL
Nature of Relationship None
2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction None
3. | Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction NIL
4, Amount (In Lakhs) N.A.
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any N.A.
6. | Date of approval by the Board
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
| SL. | Particulars | Details




No.

1. | Name (s) of the related party

1. Kumar Exports (UNIT-1)

Nature of Relationship

Associate Firm

2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchases/Labour Job
Sales
Amount Receivable
3. | Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | Ongoing
transaction

4. | Amount (In Rs.)

Rs. 48.59 Lakhs
Rs. 2883.11 Lakhs
Rs. 1147.40 Lakhs

5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | 1) Purchase of Casting and Forging
transaction including the value, if any Materials
i) Labour Job of metal forging parts.
iii) Sales of Casting and Forging
Materials
6. Date of approval by the Board 07.09.2022
Nature of Transactions during the year Details
Amount in Lakh (Rs.)
REMUNERATION
Ashish Kumar Sood 45.17
Ajay Kumar Sood 45.17
Arun Kumar Sood 45.17
T=; Pranav Khanna 2.35
g Usha Jayaprakash 5.50
ot
& MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT
% Ashish Kumar Sood 1.08
& Ajay Kumar Sood 2.89
% Arun Kumar Sood 2.40
i AMOUNT PAYABLE
% Ashish Kumar Sood 8.39
Ajay Kumar Sood 8.39
Arun Kumar Sood 8.39
Pranav Khanna 0.37
Usha Jayaprakash 0.64
Date of approval by the Board 07.09.2022

Dated: 07.09.2023
Place: Ludhiana

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited




Sd/- Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood Arun Kumar Sood

(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)

DIN: 00685585 DIN: 00685937

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road, House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1

Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB




ANNEXURE °IIP

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
Kumar Autocast Limited continued to emphasize on the conservation and optimal utilization of energy in
manufacturing unit of the Company. The energy conservation measures Implemented during FY 2022-23
are listed below:
e Maintenance of the machines as per schedule.
e Lights in the Factory area are switched off whenever not required.
e Energy audit is conducted and recommendations are implemented.
2. Additional Investments & Proposals, if any, being implemented for Reduction of Consumption
of Energy:
The company continued its efforts towards effective utilization of energy for reduction in power
consumption. The Company is constantly exploring the use of alternate sources of energy that are
commensurate with the scale of present operations and the type of products being manufactured.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments;
During the year under review, there was no capital investment on Energy Conservation Equipments.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
POWER CONSUMPTION

Units Purchased (KWH) 80,50,575 76,55,603
Amount (Rs.) 5,60,32,000 5,32,83,000.00
Average Rate Per Unit (Rs.) 6.96 6.96

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

e Imparting training to personnel in various manufacturing techniques by experts.

(2) Benefits derived like Product Improvement, Cost Reduction, Product Development or

Import Substitution as a result of above efforts:




e Increase productivity.

e Power saving.

e Manpower cost reduced.

e Raw materials cost reduction.

e Production wastage reduced.

(3) Information regarding technology imported during the last 3 years

e The Details of Technology Imported
e The Year of Import

e  Whether Technology Has been Fully Absorbed
e If Not Fully Absorbed, Areas Where Absorption

has not taken place and the reasons thereof.

(4)Expenditure on Research and Development

- NIL

- Not Applicable
- Not Applicable
- Not Applicable

During the year under review the company did not incurred any expenses on Research and Development.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review the company has Import of USD 141250/- (INR.11364900.50) in FY

2022-23 from M/s Vietnam Abrasives Co.Ltd.

Dated: 07.09.2023
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood

(Wholetime Director)

DIN: 00685585

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sood

(Managing Director)

DIN: 00685937

House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1

Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB




ANNEXURE ‘IV’
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kumar Autocast Limited
C-179, Focal Point

Phase VI, Ludhiana,
Punjab (India).

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices made by Kumar Autocast Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our virtual verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2023
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 according to the provisions of:

1) the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:

i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder

v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings — Not applicable during the audit period.

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)




a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable during the Audit Period

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable during the audit period

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable to the company during period of audit

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021;To the extent applicable on unlisted companies.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; Not applicable to the company during period of audit.

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the audit period

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities and
Security Receipts) Regulations, 2008;Not Applicable during the audit period

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
To the extent of its applicability on Unlisted company.

1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; Not applicable to the company during period of audit.

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
Not applicable to the company during period of audit

k) Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015; Not Applicable during the audit period.

Based on the above examination, We hereby report that, during the Review Period:
We hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, except with regard to

6)] Non-compliance of Reg. 23 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.




Sr. No. Compliance Requirement Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the
(Regulations/ circulars/ Practicing Company Secretary
guidelines including specific
clause)

1. Regulation 23 (1) of SEBI | Non- The Company has taken adequate
(Listing Obligations and cqmpliance steps and actions to comply with
Disclosure Requirements) | With , the required Regulations,
Regulations, 2015 I;; %lll;at;?n provisions and guidelines.

SEBI
(LODR)

The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/

material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard

Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

Sr. | Action Details of Details of action taken E.g. | Observations/ Remarks of the
No. | taken by violation fines, warning letter, Practicing Company
debarment, etc. Secretary, if any.
1. | Securities Non- With reference to letter | The company had updated the
and compliance issued by SE.B ['with respect Related Party Transactions on
to penal actions prescribed
Exchange with for Non-compliance with | the company’s website and
Board of | Regulation 23 dlsclosu're of related party ensures that the website is
transactions
India (1) of SEBI updated with the required
(LODR) disclosures within prescribed
Regulations, time.
2015

(ii)) Non-compliance of Reg. 23 (9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Regulations, 2015

Regulations.

Sr. No. Compliance Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the
Requirement Practicing Company Secretary
(Regulations/ circulars/
guidelines including
specific clause)

1. Regulation 23 (9) of | Non- The Company has taken
SEBI (Listing cqmpliance adequate steps and actions to
Obligations and | With comply with the required
Disclosure Regulation 23 Regulations, provisions and
Requirements) (9) of SEBI guidelines.

(LODR)




The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/
material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating
Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and

circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

Sr. | Action Details of Details of action taken E.g. | Observations/ Remarks of the
No. | taken by violation fines, warning letter, Practicing Company
debarment, etc. Secretary, if any.
1. | Securities Non- With reference to letter | The fine charges as imposed

issued by SEBI with respect

to penal actions prescribed

Exchange with for non-compliance of Non- | by the company.

. compliance with disclosure

Board of | Regulation 23 of reIt)lated party transactions
India (9) of SEBI | on consolidated.

As aresult, fine charges of

and compliance by the Exchange were paid off

(LODR)
Regulations, Rs. 11,800/- (Including GST
2015 @ 18 %) were imposed by

the Exchange on the Listed
entity.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Adequate notice is given to all directors/members/shareholders to schedule the General Meetings,
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least Twenty One days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.




Place: Ludhiana
Date: 02.09.2023
Sd/-
Harshit arora
Harshit Arora & Associates
ACS No. F12307
CP No. 14807
UDIN: F012307E000923668

++ Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.

s LIST OF LABOUR LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS WHICH HAVE BEEN
VERIFIED DURING AUDIT PERIOD

«» List of Labour Laws

Factories Act, 1948

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1972

The Apprentices Act, 1961

V V. V V VYV V V V

Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

«»+ List of Environmental Laws

» Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

» Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
» Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981




Annexure: -A

The Members,

Kumar Autocast Limited
C-179, Phase VI, Focal Point
LUDHIANA

Punjab (India).

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc and we have relied on such representation for giving our report.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 02.09.2023
Sd/-

Harshit arora
Harshit Arora & Associates
ACS No. F12307
CP No. 14807
UDIN: F012307E000923668




ANNEXURE ‘V’

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

PREFACE:

Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, the Nomination and Remuneration committee
of the Board of the Company has formulated a policy to decide the criteria for the appointment
and for the remuneration to the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The
Policy also aims to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a competitive and global markets
scenario which is formulated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 24.12.2014.

Produced here below is the “Nomination &Remuneration Policy” of the Company in

compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the object as mentioned herein.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to Board their
appointment and removal.

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

To recommend to the Board remuneration policy related to remuneration of Directors (Whole
Time Directors, Executive Directors etc), Key Managerial Personnel and other employees while
ensuring the following;:-

e That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully.

e That relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

e That remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate of the working of the company and its goals.

-To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors and the Board.

-To devise a policy on Board diversity.




3. MEMBERSHIP:

a). The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
Independent.

b) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

¢) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

4. CHAIRMAN:

a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee.

c¢) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’

queries.

5. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS:

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the

meetings of the Committee.

7. SECRETARY:
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.
8. VOTING:

a) Decisions of the Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and
voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.




9. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING:

The minutes of all the proceedings of all meetings must be signed by the Chairman of the

Committee at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the

subsequent Board meetings.

10. EFFECTIVE DATE & AMENDMENTS:

This policy will be effective from 24.12.2014 and may be amended subject to the approval of

Board of Directors.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2023

Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood
(Wholetime Director)

DIN: 00685585

2086, Phase-1, Urban Estate,
Ludhiana, 141003

ANNEXURE ‘VDP

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sood
(Managing Director)

DIN: 00685937

2087, Phase-1, Urban Estate,
Dugri, Ludhiana, 141003




Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the Financial Year 2022-23, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 and the comparison of
remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as
under:

Sr. Name of Remuneration of | % Increase | Ratio of Comparison of the
Director/ Director / KMP in Remuneration of Remuneration of the
No. KMP and for the Financial | Remunerati | each Director / to KMP against the
Designation Year 2022-23 on in the | median performance of the
(Rs. In Lacs) Financial remuneration of Company
Year 2022- | employees
23
1. | Arun Kumar During 2022-23, the
Sood, 45.17 (7.55%) 50.96:1 Company  incurred
Executive profit before
Director depreciation, interest

and tax of Rs. 31.97
Lacs as  against
50.96:1 PBDIT of Rs. -14.88
Lacs in the previous

2. | Ashish Sood,
Executive 45.17 (7.55%)
Director

3. | Ajay Kumar year. During 2022-23
Sood the profit after tax

50.96:1 was Rs. 125.93 Lacs
as against loss of Rs.
-110.19 Lacs last
year.

Executive

) 45.17 (7.55%)
Director

4. | Shrey
Bhutani, Non-
Executive - - - -
Independent
Director

5. | Rakesh
Dhanda, Non-
Executive - - - -
Independent
Director

6. | Ritu Mehra

Non-
Executive




Independent
Woman
Director

7. | Aravind
Prasad, Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(cessation

w.e.f.
(07.09.2022))

8. | Neha Sood,
Non Executive
Independent
Woman
Director

w.e.f.
(07.09.2022))

9. | Usha
Jayaprakash 550 (1.67%) 1.88:1 -
(CFO)

10. | Pranav During 2022-23, the
Khanna Company  incurred
2.35 - 1.41:1 profit before
depreciation, interest
Secretary and tax of Rs. 31.97

Company

Lacs as against
PBDIT of Rs. -14.88
Lacs in the previous
year. During 2022-23
the profit after tax
was Rs. 125.93 Lacs
as against loss of Rs.
-110.19 Lacs last
year.

* Details not given as Mr. Rakesh Dhanda, Mr. Shrey Bhutani & Ms. Ritu Mehra were appointed as

Independent Directors and no such sitting fee is paid to attend the meetings.




Annexure VIII
Policies

Annexure VIII(i)

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Preamble

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations)
stipulates that the Company shall familiarize the Independent Directors through various
programmes about the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities as Independent Directors of
the Company, etc., through various programmes. As per Listing Regulation the details of the
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors shall be disseminated on the website of
the Company.

1. Initial Familiarization Module

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him, which inter
alia explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of the
Company. The Company conducts an introductory familiarization program / presentation,
when a new Independent Director comes on the Board of the Company. At the outset, all the
independent directors are provided an overview of;

a) Criteria of independence applicable to Independent Directors as per Listing Regulations and
the Companies Act, 2013;

b) Time allocation by the Independent Directors on financial controls, overseeing systems of risk
management, financial management compliance, Corporate Social Responsibility, Stakeholders
conflicts, Board effectiveness, strategic direction, Meetings and performance assessment;

¢) Roles, functions, Duties, Responsibilities and liabilities of Independent Directors;

d) Directors Responsibility Statement forming part of Boards” Report;

e) Vigil Mechanism including policy formulation, disclosures, code for Independent Directors;
f) Risk Management Systems & framework;

g) Board Evaluation Process and Procedures;

The Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him under the
Companies Act, Listing Regulations and other relevant regulations and his affirmation taken
with respect to the same. With a view to familiarize him with the Company’s operations, the




Chairman/Managing Director provides a one-to-one interaction on the organisational set up,
the functioning of various divisions / departments, the Company’s market share and the
markets in which it operates, governance and internal control processes and other relevant
information pertaining to the Company’s business. The above initiatives help the Director to
understand the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the Company
operates and equips him to effectively fulfill his role as a Director of the Company.

2. Continual Familiarization Modules

The Company follows a structured orientation programme for the Independent Directors to
understand and get updated on the business and operations of the Company on a continuous
basis. The familiarization module inter-alia, includes regular inputs on strategy and business
model of the Company, budgeting and planning, performance of various business verticals,
statutory reporting including Internal Audit Reports, SEBI Audit Reports and compliance
related certifications and overview of business of subsidiaries on an on-going basis through the
Chairman/ Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer and the Senior Managerial Personnel.
The Company also provides an opportunity to the Independent Directors to interact with the
senior team leader of the Company and help them to understand the Company’s strategy,
business model, operations, service and product offerings, markets, organization structure,
facilities and risk management and such other areas. Presentations are made to the Board of
Directors / Audit Committee (AC) (minutes of AC and other Board Committees are circulated
to the Board), where Directors get an opportunity to interact with Executive Committee
members and Business Heads. The Board of Directors has complete access to the information
within the Company. Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s
management.

Apart from this, they also have independent interactions with the Statutory Auditors, the
Internal Auditors and external advisors appointed from time to time. Further, they meet
regularly without the presence of any management personnel and their meetings are conducted
informally to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s
affairs and put forth their combined views to the Board of Directors of the Company.

3. REVIEW

This Familiarization Process shall be reviewed and revised by the Board as and when required.
Disclosure of the Policy:

Pursuant to Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations, the Familiarization Programme shall be
disclosed on the Company’s website and a web link thereto shall be provided in the Annual
Report.




Annexure VIII(ii)

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

Preamble

The Companies Act 2013 under the provisions of Section 177 has mandated that “every listed
Company or such class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall establish a vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed”. Further
such vigil mechanism under “shall provide for adequate safequards against victimisation of persons
who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases”.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) read with rule 7 of Chapter XII of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has set up and adopted the following Vigil
Mechanism which lays down the principles and standards governing the
management of grievances and concerns of employees and directors of the Company
and shall be overseen by the Audit Committee (hereinafter referred to as
‘Committee’) of the Company. The Mechanism as set up herein-below shall enable
the employees and the directors of the Company to report their genuine concerns or
grievances about the actual and potential violation of the principles and standards
laid down herein.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and
legal conduct of business operations and in order to maintain these standards the
Company encourages the employees to voice their genuine concerns without fear of
censure.

Mechanism

1. Objectives:-

To encourage employees to bring genuine ethical and legal concerns, violations and
suspected fraudulent behaviour of which they are or become aware of, to an internal
authority so that action can be taken immediately to resolve the problem.

To minimize the Company's exposure to the damage that can occur when the
employees actually or potentially try to circumvent internal mechanisms in
furthering the aforementioned concerns, violation and frauds.

To let employees know that the Organization is serious about adherence to Code of
conduct or policy.

2. Scope

This Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to
have taken place, misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of
Company’s rules, manipulations, negligence causing danger to public health and
safety, misappropriation of monies and other matters or activities on account of
which the interest of the Company is affected.




However the mechanism does not release the employees from their duty of
confidentiality in the course of their work and nor can it be used as a route for raising
malicious or unfounded allegations about a personal situation.

3. Eligibility

All Employees and Directors of the Company are eligible to make disclosures under
the mechanism in relation to matters concerning the Company.

4. Procedure:-

1. Where any director or employee finds or observes any of following activities (but not
limited to) then he must within a period of 30days of occurrence of event or on the date on
which he comes to know, report in writing their complaint / grievance in the format as
provided in Annexure 1 to this mechanism:

Embezzlement of funds.

Any prejudicial act in which stakeholders interest or public interest is involved.
Serious frauds which are affecting or may affect the financial position of the
Company.

Internal theft.

Payoff &Kickbacks etc.

2. The Complainant shall address the Complaints / Grievances to the Vigilance Officer (as
may be designated by the Audit Committee) of the Company or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee (in exceptional cases). The duly filled complaint form provided herein
shall be submitted to any of the above mentioned person(s):

3. In order to protect the identity of the complainant, the Vigilance Officer or the Committee
will maintain confidentiality of the complainants.

4. The Committee on the receipt of disclosure of any of above frauds or events shall make a
record of the disclosure and also ascertain from the complainant whether he was the
person who made the disclosure or not. The Committee shall also carry out initial
investigation either itself or at its discretion by involving any other official of the
Company or an outside agency as it may deem fit.

5. The decision to undertake the investigation by the Committee shall not by itself be
regarded as the acceptance of the accusation by the Committee. It is a neutral fact finding
process to ascertain the truth of the accusation.

6. Any member of the Audit Committee or such other officer involved in the investigation,
having any conflict of interest with the matter shall disclose his/her concern/interest
forthwith and shall not deal with the matter.

7. The Committee as it deems fit, may call for further information from the complainant.

8. The Committee shall carry out detailed investigation if the reported disclosure is found to
be correct.




9. The Employee/Director against whom disclosure has been reported shall:- Co-operate
with Committee or any person appointed in this regard.
Have a right to consult any person of his choice other than members of Committee
and / or Complainant.

Not interfere in investigations conducted by Committee.

Not withhold, tamper or destroy any of evidences.

Unless otherwise restricted, be given an opportunity to respond to material
findings.

Not threaten, influence or intimidate complainant or any of witnesses. Have a

right to know the outcomes of investigation.

10. The Investigations shall be completed within a period of 60days.

5. Decisions and Reporting

If the outcome of the investigation leads to a conclusion that, any improper or
unethical act has been committed, then the Committee must record the same and
recommend the Complaint along with the findings of the Committee upon
investigation to the management for the disciplinary or corrective action to be taken
against the concerned employee/director. The decision of the Committee shall be
recorded with reasons and a copy of the same shall be forwarded to the complainant
and the subject.

If the decision is not to the satisfaction of the complainant then the complainant has
the right to report the event to the appropriate legal or investigating authority.
However, if the complainant makes false or wrong allegations then disciplinary
actions in accordance with the rules, procedures and policies of the Company shall be
taken against the complainant as the Committee may decide.

6. Penalties

If the alleged fraud or misconduct is proven after investigation, the Committee may
impose such penalty / fine as it may deem fit depending upon nature of fraud or
unethical act done by the person.

7. Secrecy and Confidentiality

The Committee as well as complainant shall:-

Maintain confidentiality of all matters under this policy.

Discuss only to the extent or with those persons as required under this policy for
completing the process of investigation.

Not keep the papers unattended anywhere at any time.

Keep the electronic mails / files under password and under safe custody.




8. Protection

No unfair treatment will be meted out to a complainant by virtue of his/ her having
reported a Protected Disclosure under this policy. The Company, as a policy,
condemns any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair
employment practice being adopted against complainants. Complete protection will
therefore be given to complainant against any unfair practice like retaliation, threat or
intimidation of termination / suspension of service, disciplinary action, transfer,
demotion, refusal of promotion or the like including any direct or indirect use of
authority to obstruct the complainant’s right to continue to perform his duties
/functions including making further disclosure.

The Company will take steps to minimize difficulties which the complainant may
experience as a result of making the disclosure. Thus, if the complainant is required
to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Company will arrange
for the complainant to receive advice about the procedure, etc.

A complainant may report any violation of the above clause to the Chairman of the
Committee, who shall investigate into the same and recommend suitable action to the
management. The identity of the complainant shall be kept confidential to the extent
possible and permitted under law. The identity of the complainant will not be
revealed unless he himself has made either his details public or disclosed his identity
to any other office or authority.

In the event of the identity of the complainant being disclosed, the Committee is
authorized to initiate appropriate action as per extent regulations against the person
or agency making such disclosure. The identity of the complainant, if known, shall
remain confidential to those persons directly involved in applying this mechanism,
unless the issue requires investigation by law enforcement agencies.

Any other employee assisting in the said investigation shall also be protected to the
same extent as the Complainant. Provided however that the complainant before
making a complaint has reasonable belief that an issue exists and that he has acted in
good faith. This policy does not protect an employee from an adverse action taken
independent of his disclosure of unethical and improper practice etc. unrelated to a
disclosure made pursuant to this policy.

9. Direct Access to Chairman

The complainant shall have direct access to Chairman of Committee in exceptional
cases. The Chairman shall prescribe suitable direction in this regard.

10.Display of Mechanism on Website




The Mechanism herein set up cannot be effective unless it has been communicated to
eligible person described herein above. For this purpose Company shall display it on
its website and shall also disclose it in Board’s Report.

11.Retention of Documents

The evidences, documents received by the committee in due course of time during
investigation shall be preserved for three (3) years or for such period as may be
specified by law in force in this regard from time to time.

12. Amendments

The Company reserves right to amend, modify, and cancel any of the provisions of
the mechanism in whole or in part set up herein above or may restrict subject to such
conditions as it may deem fit.
Date of Approval By Board of Director’s: 18.06.2014

Annexure 1

Date:

Name of Complainant (Employee/Director)

Email-id

Address:

Contact No.

Subject matter which is being reported

Name of Person/Event focused at:

Brief about concern

Evidence (if Any)

Signature
Annexure VIII(iii)




1. Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

With changes in the corporate governance norms brought by the Companies Act,
2013 as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation
2015, the role of Non-Executive Directors (NED) and the degree and quality of
their engagement with the Board and the Company has undergone significant
changes over a period of time. The Company is being hugely benefited from the
expertise, advice and inputs provided by the NEDs. They devote their valuable
time in deliberating on the strategic and critical issues in the course of the Board
and Committee meetings of the Company and give their valuable advice,
suggestion and guidance to the management of the Company from time to time.
Levels of remuneration to the NEDs are determined such that they attract, retain
and motivate directors of the quality and ability required to run the Company
successfully.

Under the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015,
requires every company to publish its criteria of making payments to NEDs in its
annual report. Alternatively, this may be put up on the company’s website and
reference may be drawn thereto in its annual report. Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(6)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation 2015 require the prior approval of the shareholders of a
company for making payment to its NEDs.

In keeping with the above, any fee/remuneration payable to the NEDs of the
Company shall abide by the following:

Sitting Fee:

Such director(s) may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of
the Board or Committee thereof or any other meeting as required by Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 or
other applicable law or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by
the Board;

Commission:

Under the Companies Act, 2013, Section 197 allows a company to pay
remuneration to its NEDs either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified
percentage of the net profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by
the other. Further, the section also stateg that where the company has managing



director or whole-time director or manager, then a maximum of 1% of its net
profits can be paid as remuneration to its NEDs. In case there is no managing
director or whole-time director or manager, then a maximum of 3% of net profit
can be paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the NEDs is the net profit of the
Company.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and
commission will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.
However the Company is however not obligated to remunerate its NEDs.

Refund of excess remuneration paid:

If any such director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of
fee/remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit as prescribed or without the
prior sanction, where it is required, such remuneration shall be refunded to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The
Company shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it.

Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred:

NEDs may also be paid/reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or
actual as fair compensation for travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and
/or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such member for attending
Board/Committee Meetings.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted with the role of
reviewing the compensation of NEDs.

Payment to independent directors:

An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and shall receive
Sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or any other
meeting as required by Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation 2015 or other applicable law as amended from time to
time. Further they may also be paid / reimbursed such sums incurred as actuals
for travel, incidental and / or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such
Director / Member for attending Board / Committee Meetings.

The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

Amendments



The Company reserves the right to modify and/or amend this document at any
time subject to the applicable provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Annexure VIII(iv)

2. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

BACKGROUND

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED is engaged in the manufacture and marketing
of agricultural implements, automotive components, tool makers, brass
founders, metal workers, boiler makers, millwrights, iron and steel converters,
smiths, coke manufacturers, electrical engineers, water supply engineers,
smelters, iron plates makers and framers and manufacturing of heavy and light
forgings, casting of ferrous and non ferrous metals. The business activities of
the Company carry various internal and external risks.

‘Risk” in literal terms can be defined as the effect of uncertainty on the
objectives. Risk is measured in terms of consequences and likelihood. Risks can
be internal and external and are inherent in all administrative and business
activities. Every member of any organisation continuously manages various
types of risks. Formal and systematic approaches to managing risks have
evolved and they are now regarded as good management practice also called as
Risk Management.

‘Risk Management’ is the identification, assessment, and prioritization of risks
followed by coordinated and economical application of resources to minimize,
monitor, and control the probability and/or impact of uncertain events or to
maximize the realisation of opportunities. Risk management also provides a
system for the setting of priorities when there are competing demands on
limited resources.

Effective risk management requires:

o A strategic focus,

o Forward thinking and active approaches to management

o Balance between the cost of managing risk and the anticipated benefits, and
o Contingency planning in the event that critical threats are realised.
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In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating
inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are
imperative. The common risks inter  alia are: Regulations, competition,
Business risk, Technology obsolescence, return on investments, business cycle,
increase in price and costs, limited resources, retention of talent, etc.

1. LEGAL FRAMEWORK

Risk Management is a key aspect of Corporate Governance Principles and Code
of Conduct which aims to improvise the governance practices across the
business activities of any organization. The new Companies Act, 2013 and the
Equity Listing Agreement have also incorporated various provisions in relation
to Risk Management policy, procedure and practices.



The provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013 necessitate that the
Board’s Report should contain a statement indicating development and
implementation of a risk management policy for the Company including
identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the
Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

Further, the provisions of Section 177(4)(vii) of the Companies Act, 2013 require
that every Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference
specified in writing by the Board which shall inter alia include evaluation of
risk management systems.

In line with the above requirements, it is therefore, required for the Company to

frame and adopt a “Risk Management Policy” (this Policy) of the Company

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF THE POLICY

The main objective of this Policy is to ensure sustainable business growth
with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating
and resolving risks associated with the Company’s business. In order to
achieve the key objective, this Policy establishes a structured and disciplined
approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related
issues.

The specific objectives of this Policy are:

o To ensure that all the current and future material risk exposures of the
Company are identified, assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated,
minimized and managed ie. to ensure adequate systems for risk
management.

o To establish a framework for the company’s risk management process and

to ensure its implementation.

o To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable,
through the adoption of best practices.

o To assure business growth with financial stability.

3.  APPLICABILITY

This Policy applies to all areas of the Company’s operations.

4. KEY DEFINITIONS




o Risk Assessment -
The systematic process of identifying and analyzing risks. Risk Assessment
consists of a detailed study of threats and vulnerability and resultant
exposure to various risks

o Risk Management -
The systematic way of protecting business resources and income against losses so
that the objectives of the Company can be achieved without unnecessary
interruption.

o Risk Management Process -
The systematic application of management policies, procedures and
practices to the tasks of establishing the context, identifying, analyzing,
evaluating, treating, monitoring and communicating risk.




5.

RISK FACTORS

The objectives of the Company are subject to both external and internal

risks that are enumerated below:-

o External Risk Factors

Economic Environment and Market

conditions Competition

Revenue Concentration and liquidity aspects-
Each business area of products such as pumps, turbines, motors,
generators, switchgears and turnkey projects has specific aspects on
profitability and liquidity. The risks are therefore associated on each
business segment contributing to total revenue, profitability and
liquidity. Since the projects have inherent longer time-frame and
milestone payment requirements, they carry higher risks for profitability
and liquidity.

Inflation and Cost structure-
Inflation is inherent in any business and thereby there is a tendency of
costs going higher. Further, the project business, due to its inherent
longer time-frame, as much higher risks for inflation and resultant
increase in costs.

Technology Obsolescence -
The Company strongly believes that technological obsolescence is a
practical reality. Technological obsolescence is evaluated on a continual
basis and the necessary investments are made to bring in the best of the
prevailing technology.

Legal -
Legal risk is the risk in which the Company is exposed to legal action.
As the Company is governed by various laws and the Company has to
do its business within four walls of law, the Company is exposed to
legal risk.

Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange-
The Company has limited currency exposure in case of sales, purchases
and other expenses. It has natural hedge to some extent. However,
beyond the natural hedge, the risk can be measured through the net open
position i.e. the difference between un- hedged outstanding receipt and
payments. The risk can be controlled by a mechanism of “Stop Loss”
which means the Company goes for hedging (forward booking) on
open position when actual exchange rate reaches a particular level as
compared to transacted rate.



o Internal Risk Factors
Project Execution
Contractual
Compliance
Operational
Efficiency

Hurdles in optimum use of resources Quality
Assurance
Environmental Management
Human Resource Management
Culture and values

6. RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

Generally every staff member of the Organization is responsible for the effective
management of risk including the identification of potential risks. Management is
responsible for the development of risk mitigation plans and the implementation of
risk reduction strategies. Risk management processes should be integrated with
other planning processes and management activities.

7. COMPLIANCE AND CONTROL

All the Senior Executives under the guidance of the Chairman and Board of Directors
has the responsibility for over viewing management’s processes and results in
identifying, assessing and monitoring risk associated with Organization’s business
operations and the implementation and maintenance of policies and control
procedures to give adequate protection against key risk. In doing so, the Senior
Executive considers and assesses the appropriateness and effectiveness of
management information and other systems of internal control, encompassing review
of any external agency in this regards and action taken or proposed resulting from
those reports.

8. REVIEW

This Policy shall be reviewed at least every year to ensure it meets the requirements
of legislation and the needs of organization.

9. AMENDMENT
This Policy can be modified at any time by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Approved by Board As on: 02.09.2014

Annexure VIII (v)

Code of Conduct

INTRODUCTION

Applicable to all Directors and Officers in Management Cadre - (hereinafter referred to
as ‘Employees’)

The Company is committed to integrity in every facet of its business. For each of us this
means conducting ourselves according to high ethical and legal standards. The Code of
Conduct sets forth the Company’s policy to comply with the local laws and
regulations. Each Designated Person is expected to comply with the code in letter and
spirit.

The code also sets forth the Company’s business ethics policy relating to business and
commercial activities and conduct by Employees. Business decisions always must reflect
high ethical standards and not be influenced by business or personal interests that
Employees may have with third parties or by unauthorized concessions or payments to
or from third parties.

3. Code of Conduct

A. Discrimination in Employment and Unlawful Harassment-
In the conduct of business, each employee is required to respect the rights and
cultural differences of individuals. The Company is also committed to following the
applicable labour and employment laws.

The Company prohibits all forms of unlawful discrimination, retaliation and
harassment in the workplace, including, but not limited to, unlawful discrimination
on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, citizenship, sexual
orientation, age, physical or mental disability or any other legally protected
status. The Company also strives to achieve a work environment that is free from
unlawful  discrimination, retaliation and harassment, including sexual
harassment. This obligation extends to supervisory and non-supervisory personnel,
as well as contractors, vendors, clients or visitors to the extent that their conduct
affects the work environment or interferes with performance of work.
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Employees who feel that they have been subjected to unlawful discrimination,
retaliation or harassment should notify their supervisor and/or a Human Resource
manager who promptly will investigate the matter. Employees need not make the
complaint to their supervisor or the local Human Resource manager if they are
uncomfortable in doing so, or if these individuals are involved in the subject
activity. In such circumstances, Employees may contact the top Human Resource
professional at the Corporate Office at Ludhiana. Prompt investigative action will be
taken and where appropriate, remedial or corrective action will be taken with respect
to unlawful harassment or discrimination. Employees will not be subject to
retaliation for reporting incidents that they, in good faith, believe are violation of this

policy.

B. Privacy-

The Company expects all Employees to protect individually identifiable customer
information and sensitive personal information about employees, applicants and
research study subjects from inappropriate or unauthorized use or disclosure, and to
comply with privacy and data protection policies established by the Company as
well as all privacy-related laws, regulations and treaties. The Company maintains the
right to inspect and monitor employee use of Company property such as computers,
e-mail and phone systems.

C. Dealing in Securities-

From time to time, Employees may become aware of significant information about the

Company that generally is not known outside the Company. Buying or selling the
Company’s shares with awareness of such information may violate the law and
expose the Designated Person and the Company to substantial civil and criminal
penalties. To prevent the misuse of such information and to avoid even the
appearance of improper conduct, all Employees, in addition to complying with all
applicable laws, must comply with the Company’s Insider Trading Code.

Among other things, the Company’s Insider Trading Code prohibits Employees from
buying or selling the Company’s securities while aware of “material information”
about the Company that is not known publicly. The Code broadly defines “material
information” to include any information that a reasonable investor likely would
consider important in making a decision to buy or sell the Company’s securities. In
particular, there can be no trading in the Company’s shares when the trading
window is closed.

D. Intellectual Property-
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Among the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. Intellectual
property takes different forms, including patents, trade secrets, trademarks,
copyrights, scientific, technical and business knowledge, know-how and experience.
Examples of intellectual property include applications to regulatory agencies,
formulae, data, processes, devices, patterns and drawings, research records, customer
and supplier lists and information, legal, marketing, sales and financial analyses and
compilations of information, maintained in confidence and used in the Company’s
operations.

It is the Company’s policy to enforce its intellectual property rights in an appropriate
manner consistent with the law. It is the duty of all Employees to establish, protect,
maintain and defend the Company’s rights in its intellectual property and
confidential information. This duty extends to protecting such information after
Employees leave the Company.

It is also important to the Company that all Employees discuss their ideas, inventions
or developments with the Legal Department to determine whether these are
patentable or otherwise legally protectable. Employees are required to submit for
appropriate legal review Records of Invention concerning new ideas, inventions or
developments. Legal review also must be sought when using the Company
trademarks, trade names and trade dress, when releasing Company confidential
information to persons outside the Company and when transacting business in any
way concerning the intellectual property rights of the Company.

In addition, it is the Company’s policy to respect the intellectual property rights of
others. Unauthorized use of the intellectual property rights of others may expose you
and the Company to civil litigation and damages and possible significant fines and
criminal penalties. Appropriate legal review must occur prior to any activities that
may infringe on another’s intellectual property; before soliciting, accepting or using
potentially proprietary information of others, including the unsolicited offer of ideas
by non-Company personnel; and before selling, buying, licensing or otherwise
transacting business concerning intellectual property rights of others.

E. Environmental and Safety Laws-

The Company is committed to a safe environment and sound environmental actions.

The Company strives to comply fully with all environmental and safety laws and

regulations. All waste products and hazardous materials should be treated, stored,

handled and disposed of in full compliance with all laws, regulations and Company

practices. The unsafe storage of a potentially toxic or hazardous material or the

improper release of any such materials into the environment must be reported
12




promptly to your supervisor. To identify, control and minimize waste and the use of
hazardous materials. To design products that are environmentally sound, conserve
natural resources and minimize use of hazardous materials.

F. Food, Drug and Medical Device Laws
Various laws regulate the manufacture, labeling, sale and, in some cases, the
promotion of many of the Company’s products to assure their safety, efficacy and
quality. Violations of these laws can result in severe penalties to the Company and
individual employees. The Company expects its Employees to comply fully with
such laws. In the event of a question concerning these laws, you should consult with
the Medical Department and/or the Law Department.

G. False Reporting to Government Agencies-
It is a crime, subject to fine or imprisonment, to make a false statement to any
government agency. The Company’s policy is to provide all required disclosure to
government agencies and to assure that such information is truthful and
accurate. The Company and its Employees must adhere to this policy.

H. Political Contributions-
A Designated Person/employee may contribute directly or indirectly to any political
party, candidate or, political action committee, but any such contribution must be
made on a personal basis, not on behalf of the Company, and reimbursement must
not be sought from the Company, directly or indirectly.

L. Improper Payments in the Public and Private Sectors-
Our laws prohibit bribery of public officials. The Company’s policy extends beyond
these laws and prohibits making unauthorized concessions or paying confidential
commissions and bonuses, bribes or other type of unofficial payment to employees or
officials of any government or to any third party in a commercial transaction.

The Company and its Employees also must comply with applicable laws and
regulations that prohibit providing remuneration to induce the prescription,
purchase or order of Company products that may be subject to reimbursement or
payment by a government agency or other third party. It is the Company’s policy to
market and sell its medical products in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations.

Any person or company that represents the Company (such as a consultant, agent,
sales representative, distributor or contractor) must comply with the Company
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policies prohibiting improper payments in the public and private sectors. Payments
made indirectly through an intermediary, under circumstances indicating that such
payments would be passed along for inappropriate purposes, are prohibited.

J. Money Laundering Prevention-

Money laundering is a criminal activity in which the proceeds of a crime are hidden or
converted in some way to make them appear legitimate. The Company is committed
to complying fully with all applicable anti-money laundering laws. The Company
will conduct business only with reputable customers who are involved in legitimate
businessactivities and whose funds are derived from legitimate sources. Reasonable
steps must be taken to ensure that the Company does not accept forms of payment
that are known or suspected as means of laundering money, such as cash payments.

K. Public Disclosures-

All disclosures made by the Company to its stockholders, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, the Stock Exchange or the investment community must be accurate
and complete and fairly present the Company's financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows in all material respects, and must be made on a timely
basis as required by applicable laws and stock exchange requirements. The Company
expects its Employees to provide prompt and accurate answers to enquiries relating
to its public disclosures and requirements.

L. Internal Controls-

All Employees have a responsibility to be aware of the Company’s system of internal
controls and the appropriate use and safeguarding of Company assets. Employees
must comply with applicable internal controls and assist in taking corrective action in
the case of control failures, including identifying procedures not being followed
properly as well as weaknesses in the internal control system, and striving for
improvements in the internal control system. Examples of internal controls include
appropriate authorizations and approvals of expenditures, and this Code of Conduct.

M. Compliance with Code of Conduct

Any Designated Person who knows of or suspects of a violation of applicable laws,
rules or regulations or this Code of Conduct, he/she must immediately report the
same to the Managing Director. Such person should as far as possible provide the
details of suspected violations with all known particulars relating to the issue. The
Company recognizes that resolving such problems or concerns will advance the
overall interests of the Company that will help to safeguard the Company's assets,
financial integrity and reputation.
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2.

This Code may be amended, modified or waived only by the Company's Board of
Directors and must be publicly disclosed if required by any applicable law or
regulation. As a general policy, the Board will not grant any waivers to this Code.

BUSINESS ETHICS POLICY

The goal is to foster standards of conduct to ensure that business decisions are driven by

the overall obligation of all Employees to protect the assets of the Company. Business

decisions are not to be based on financial or business interests between any employees

and third parties. Unauthorized concessions or payments to third parties are strictly
prohibited.

A violation of the Company standards also may be a violation of law.

1.

L. Conflicts of Interest:
When the Company’s Employees, and/or, in some cases, their relatives have
significant financial or business interests in another company competing or doing
business with the Company, or stand to benefit in some way from such a relationship
or activity, their efforts on the Company’s behalf could be improperly influenced.

Consequently, all Employees should co-operate in avoiding even the appearance of
impropriety. For the purposes of this Code, the spouse, parents, grandparents,
children, grand -children and their spouses, siblings, mother-in-law, father-in
law, son-in-law, daughters-in-law, sisters-in-law and brothers-in-law of the
Employees are included.

The following are some examples (not meant to be all inclusive) of situations in
which such outside interests involving the Employees or a relative may lead to
conflict with the Company’s standards. Because this set of examples is not inclusive,
please use good judgment in the spirit of the Code in reviewing situations as they
arise:

1. The following are example of the types of activities which, are prohibited for

Employees/Designated Persons without the prior written consent of the Managing
Director:
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2.

Holding a significant financial interest in the business of any supplier,
competitor or customer of the Company when in a position to influence the
relationship between the Company and the supplier, competitor or
customer. For the purpose of this Code, a “significant financial interest”
means an investment of any amount in any company, the securities of
which are not publicly listed or quoted, or an investment in excess of 2% of
the paid up capital of any company that is publicly listed or quoted. It also
means that borrowing from any such company, except for a personal
transaction with a bank or comparable financing organization is not

permitted.

Serving as a director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any of the
Company’s competitors.

. Serving in any position of any commercial enterprise or other commercial

endeavor that would interfere with the performance of duties to the
Company.

Accepting or designating the acceptance by someone else, of any gift or
entertainment of value in any way connected with the placing of business
with or by any of the Company’s supplier or customer.

. Purchasing any materials, equipment, property or services at a cost to the

Company in excess of their fair and reasonable value in the free, open and

competitive market.

Competing with the Company in the purchase or sale of any kind of
property, tangible or intangible.

Relatives of Employees may not accept from any third party any gift or
entertainment of value in any way connected with the placing of business
with or by any Company supplier or customer.

The following are examples of the types of activities which must be disclosed to
the Managing Director for review and response:

b. Service as a Designated Person of any commercial enterprise including, but

not limited to, any customer or supplier of the Company and any for-profit
organization in the health care field.
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c. Service as a director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any not-
for-profit organization in the health care field.

d. Service as an official, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any
governmental agency, subdivision thereof, or other governmentally-related
body in the healthcare field.

e. When the Employees become aware of it, the holding by a relative of a
significant financial interest (as defined above) in the business of any
supplier, competitor or customer of the Company when the Designated
Person is in a position to influence the relationship between the Company
and the supplier, competitor or customer.

f. When the Designated Person becomes aware of it, service by relative as a
director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any Company supplier,
competitor or customer when the Designated Person or his/her relative is
in a position to influence the relationship between the Company and such
supplier, competitor or customer.

Any disclosure shall be considered on a case-by-case basis, and any action
deemed necessary or appropriate by the Company will be at the sole discretion
of the Company. Independent members of the Company's Board of Directors
must, in accordance with Company policy, disclose various potential conflicts of
interest, which will be evaluated by the entire Board to determine compliance
with applicable laws and stock exchange rules. Directors involved in any
conflict or potential conflict situations shall rescue themselves from any
discussion or decision relating thereto.

IL. Confidential Information : The unauthorized disclosure, while a person as a
Director or employed by the Company and thereafter, of any of the Company’s
confidential business information or intellectual property such as financial data,
formulae, processes, advertising methods or prospective transactions, to any other
person, firm or corporation is prohibited. The use - directly or indirectly - of
confidential Company business information, while employed by the Company and
thereafter for personal benefit, for the benefit of immediate family members or for the
benefit of any other person, firm or corporation is prohibited. The use of such
information generally to the possible detriment of the Company also is prohibited.
Communication with securities market professionals concerning the Company unless
specifically authorized by an Officer to do so is not permitted. In addition to these
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obligations of confidentiality, the Designated Person shall be bound by any duties
and obligations under any confidentiality agreement or other agreement between the
Designated Person and the Company.

2. Il Industry Standards on Relationships with Medical Professionals

and Company Sponsorship of Educational and Scientific Symposia: The
Company complies with standards established by industry and professional groups that
concern industry relationships with medical professionals and sponsorship of medical
education and scientific symposia.

IV. Advertising and Promotional Standards: It is Company’s policy to advertise,
promote and label its products in a factual and informative manner. In addition, all
such communications must be consistent with applicable governmental
regulations. The Company’s publicity disseminated advertising and promotional
material must accurately and fairly describe the Company’s products and not be
false, misleading or deceptive. It also is Company policy only to use sales and
marketing programs and materials that have been approved in accordance with
Company procedures.

3. Annexure VIII (vi)
Dividend Distribution Policy

1. INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kumar Autocast Limited (“Company”)
understands the importance of shareholders” confidence and trust in the Company. In
order to preserve the same with transparency and to ensure that there is no conflict of
interest or any apprehension in the minds of its shareholders, the Board of the Company,
has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy (“Policy”) and procedures with respect to
Dividends declared/ recommended by the Company in accordance with the provisions
of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended from
time to time.

18




2. BACKGROUND AND APPLICABILITY
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(“Regulations”), require the Company to formulate and disclose a Dividend Distribution
Policy in the annual report and on the corporate website. The Board of Directors
(“Board”) of Kumar Autocast Limited (“Company”) has adopted this Dividend
Distribution Policy to comply with these requirements.

Dividend represents the profit of the Company, which is distributed to shareholders in
proportion to the amount paid-up on shares they hold. Dividend includes Interim
Dividend.

3. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Policy is to facilitate the process of dividend recommendation or
declaration and its pay-out by the Company which would ensure a regular dividend
income for the shareholders and long term capital appreciation for all stakeholders of the
Company.

Dividend is the payment made by a Company to its shareholders, usually in the form of
distribution of its profits. The profits earned by the Company can either be retained in
business or used for acquisitions, expansion or diversification, or it can be distributed to
the shareholders. The Company may choose to retain a part of its profits and distribute
the balance among its shareholders as dividend.

The Company would ensure to strike the right balance between the quantum of
dividend paid and amount of profits retained in the business. The Board will refer to the
Policy while declaring/ recommending dividends on behalf of the Company.

4.  AUTHORITY

This Policy has been adopted by the Board of the Company at its Meeting held on
February 13, 2021. The Policy shall also be displayed in the Annual Report and also on
the website of the Company.

5. FORMS OF DIVIDENDS
» Interim Dividend

The interim dividend may be declared by the Board one or more times in the financial
year as may be deemed fit.

» Final Dividend

The final dividend is paid once for the financial year after the annual accounts are
prepared. The Board of Directors of the Company has the power to recommend the
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payment of final dividend to the shareholders for their approval at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The declaration of final dividend shall be included in the
ordinary business items that are required to be transacted at the Annual General
Meeting.

> Special Dividend
The Board may declare/recommend special dividend as and when it deems fit.

6. PER SHARE BASIS

The dividend will be declared on per share basis only.

7. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PARAMETERS

The Company shall declare dividend only after ensuring compliance with the requisite
regulations and directions as stipulated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, other SEBI regulations and any other

regulations as may be applicable from time to time.

8. FACTORS AFFECTING DIVIDEND DECLARATION:

1. a) External Factors to be considered while recommending/
declaring dividend
* Any significant changes in macro-economic environment affecting India or the
geographies in which the Company operates, or the business of the Company or of
its clients;

* Any political, tax and regulatory changes in the geographies in which the Company

operates;

* Any significant change in the business or technological environment resulting in the
Company making significant investments to effect the necessary changes to its
business model;

* Any changes in the competitive environment requiring significant investment.

2. b) Internal Factors to be considered while recommending/
declaring dividend

Apart from the various external factors, the Board shall take into account various
internal factors including the financial parameters while declaring dividend, which inter
alia will include:
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* Expected cash requirements of the Company including working capital, capital

expenditure
* Quarterly and Annual results
* Investments including Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A)
* Free cash flow generation
* Buy-back of shares

* Funds required to service any outstanding loans;

3. c) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings would be used to further the company’s business priorities. If there
are excess reserves beyond the medium to long term business requirements, the retained
earnings would be distributed to shareholders via Dividends or other means as
permitted by applicable regulations.

4. d) Parameters that shall be adopted with regard to various
classes of shares

Currently, the Company does not have different classes of shares and follows the “one
share, one vote’ principle. If the Company has more than one class of shares in future,
dividend for each class would be subject to prescribed statutory guidelines as well as
terms of offer of each class to the investors of that class of shares.

9. DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND
Dividend shall be declared or paid only out of -

1) Current financial year’s profit:

a. after providing for depreciation in accordance with law;

b. after transferring to reserves such amount as may be prescribed or as may be
otherwise considered appropriate by the Board at its discretion and as per

applicable law.
Or

2) The profits for any previous financial year(s) after providing for depreciation in
accordance with law and remaining undistributed;

Or

3) Out of 1) & 2) both.
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In case of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year, the Company may also
declare/ pay Dividend out of the accumulated profits earned by it in previous years and
transferred by the Company to the reserves, provided such declaration/ payment of
dividend shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules specified therein.

10. CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY OR MAY NOT
EXPECT DIVIDEND

The Board will assess the Company’s financial requirements, including present and

future organic and inorganic growth opportunities, government policies & regulations

and other relevant factors (as mentioned elsewhere in this policy) and accordingly

declare dividend in any financial year.

The shareholders of the Company may not expect dividend under certain circumstances

including the following,

In the event of inadequacy of profits or whenever the Company has incurred losses;
Significant cash flow requirements towards higher working capital requirements / tax
demands / or others, adversely impacting free cash flows;

An impending / ongoing capital expenditure program or any acquisitions or
investment in joint ventures requiring significant allocation of capital;

Allocation of cash required for buy-back of securities;

Any of the internal or external factors restraining the Company from considering
dividend.

11. UTILIZATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings shall be utilized in accordance with prevailing regulatory
requirements, creating reserves for specific objectives, fortifying the balance sheet
against contingencies, generating higher returns for shareholders through reinvestment
of profits for future growth and expansion and any other specific purpose as approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company shall endeavor to utilize
retained earnings in a manner that shall be beneficial to both, the interests of the

Company and its stakeholders.
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12. PARAMETERS WITH REGARD TO VARIOUS CLASSES

Presently, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company comprises of equity
shares only. In case, the Company issues other kind of shares, the Board may suitably

amend this Policy.

13. CONFLICT IN POLICY

In the event of a conflict between this policy and the existing statutory regulations, the

statutory regulations will prevail.

14. REVIEW, AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURE OF POLICY

This Policy may be reviewed and amended periodically as and when required by the
Board to ensure that it meets the objectives of the relevant legislation and needs of the
Company and remains effective. The Board has the right to change/ amend the policy as

may be expedient taking into account the law for the time being in force.

In the event of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s), provision(s) etc. issued by
the relevant authorities, not being consistent with the provisions laid down under this
Policy, then the same shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall
stand amended accordingly.

The Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the

Company and placed on the Company’s website, www.kumarautocast.com.
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3.

4. Annexure VIII (vii)
1. POLICY FOR DETERMINING OF MATERIALITY OF EVENTS
2. INTRODUCTION

The Policy is framed by the Board of Directors of Kumar Autocast Limited in line with

the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing

Regulations’):

- to provide an overall governance framework for determination of materiality of events

/information;

- to ensure timely and adequate disclosures of material events / information fully, fairly,

correctly and transparently to the Stock Exchange(s), in pursuance with the Listing

Regulations, to enable present and potential investors to take informed decision/s with

respect to their investment in the Company.

GUIDELINES FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS OR
INFORMATION:

1. The Company shall mandatorily disclose the events / information that are deemed to

be material, as specified in Para A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations,

without applying any test of materiality.

2. The Company shall make disclosure of events specified in Para B of Part A of

Schedule III of the Listing Regulations, on a case to case basis, depending on facts

and circumstances, based on application of the guidelines for determining

materiality, as specified below:

a)

Likely impact of 10% or more on the gross turnover, or revenues or total income
as per the last Financial Statements of the Company, or likely impact of 20% or
more on the net worth as per the last Financial Statements of the Company;
whichever is higher;

the omission of an event or information, which is likely to result in discontinuity
or alteration of event / information already available in public domain;

the omission of an event or information is likely to result in significant market
reaction, if the said omission came to light at a later date;

any other event / information which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of
the Company, is material and necessary to enable the security holders of the
Company to appraise its position and to avoid the establishment of a false market
in such securities.
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3. The Company shall disclose all events or information with respect to its Subsidiaries,
which are material to the Company.

4. Any confidential information which, if disclosed, is likely to put at risk the business
interest of the Company, may not be disclosed. The Company shall, to that extent,
make qualified disclosure to the stock exchanges.

4. SCOPE OF DISCLOSURES OF EVENTS OR INFORMATION:

1. The Company shall disclose to the stock exchanges of all material events /
information, as soon as reasonably possible, but not later than 24 hours of the
occurrence of the event / information. In case the disclosure is made after twenty-
four (24) hours of occurrence of such event or information the Company shall, along
with such disclosure(s) provide an explanation for delay.

2. The Company shall disclose to the stock exchanges of all the events specified in sub-
para 4 of Para A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations within thirty (30)
minutes of the conclusion of the board meeting.

3. The Company shall make disclosures updating material developments on a regular
basis, till such time the event is resolved / closed.

4. The Company shall provide specific and adequate reply to all queries raised by stock
exchange(s) with respect to any events or information and on its own initiative.
Further it shall confirm or deny any event or information to stock exchange(s)
reported in the media.

5. All the above disclosures would be hosted on the website of the Company for a
minimum period of five years and thereafter archived as per Company’s policy for
Preservation and Archival of Documents.

5.  AUTHORITY TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors hereby appoint Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma Chairman Director,
Mr. Arun Kumar Sood Managing Director and Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood Director
(hereinafter referred as Designated Officers) as the persons authorized severally to
determine:

- the Materiality of any event or information,
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- the appropriate time at which disclosure is to be filed with the stock exchanges, and

- details that may be filed with the stock exchanges in the best interest of present and
potential investors

6. DISSEMINATION OF POLICY:

This Policy shall be hosted on the website of the Company at www.kumarautocast.com

and address of the web-link thereto shall be provided in the Annual Report of the
Company.

7. POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENTS:
The Board will constantly review, and if found essential, may amend this Policy from
time to time, so that the Policy remains compliant with applicable legal requirements.

8. SCOPE AND LIMITATION:

In the event where the terms of this Policy differ from the provisions of any existing or
new statutory enactments, Rules, Regulations or standard governing the Company, the
provisions of such statutory enactments, rules shall prevail over this Policy and the
part(s) so repugnant shall be deemed to severed from the Policy and the rest of the
Policy shall remain in force.
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CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
(pursuant to Regulation 17(8) and Schedule Il Part B of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Board of directors,

Kumar Autocast Limited

CIN L27101PB1985PLC006100
Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point,
Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab

In compliance with Regulation 17 (8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (Listing Obligation
And Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, I
hereby certify that:

A. T have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2022-23 and
that to the best of my knowledge and belief:
i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;
ii.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. TIhave indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee
i.  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii.  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and
iii.  Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/-
Usha Jayaprakash
(Chief financial Officer)

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2023
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ATHDNAN EHANNA
B.COMHL MCOM, ACS

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISOUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{Puryucn fo Regodofion 34730 amd Schedule V' Paro O clowse (00 (o of e SERT (Listimg Cbliotiony and
Piselosure Regruirentenis) Regularons, 2001 5}

Ta,
Thie Membite,

Kumar Autocast Limited,
C-17%, Focal Point, Phase VI,
Ludhiana- 141003 PB

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, eetums and disclosures recerved from the Dircetors
of Kumar Autocast Limited having CIN: L2T101PBI9BSPLCOD6I00 and having registensd office al
€-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhians-141003 PB, India (hercinafler referred 1o as “the Compuny ),
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificnte, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clouse 10(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
{Listing Oblipations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In mv opimon and to the best of my information and sccording to the venfications {(including Direclomns
Identification Nomber (DIN) siatus ot the poral (www.moagoy.m) ns considercd necessarny nnd
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers. | hereby certify that none of the Dircetors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31at March. 2023 have
teen debamed or disgualified from bemg appointed or continumiz as Dircctors of companics by the
Secunpes amnd Exchange Board ol India, Minisirv of Corporate Affairs. or any such other Statton

Authonty
Sr, No Name of Director Designation of DM Date of
director Appointment in

Company
I Ashish Sood Wholetnme Director (OaT21 7T Q2002
. Ajav Kumar Sood Wholctime Director (KGR S585 ]/ HEO0T
3 Arun Kumar Spod Muanaging Director DOGEFSET 017 202
4 Rukesh Dhanda Dircctor 134964947 G50 2021
5 Shrew Bhutani DHrecion (989242 2B/ 20210
) Ritu Mchrm Dircctor 9445604 KK 2022

Chifice Mo, 306, 3 Floor, Noble Enclave, Bhai wala chownk, Ferozepur Road, Ludhiana, Purgab TN-141001
Mobile: +91 DERS88-9186 | Office: 01614611799 | E-Mail: csabhimavkharmafigmail.com



Further, s per the data made avalable to me ond on basis of information ond explanation provided to me,
| am of opinion that, the Company has proper mix of Exccutive and Non-cxecotive Direclors an Board,
MNone of the Independent Directors have appeared or cleaed the Exan required wnder Rule & of
Companies { Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Ruoles, 2004 as amended.

Ensuring the chmbility for the sppomtment / continuity of gvery Dircctor on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. My mesponsibility is to express an opinion on these
baszd on my venfication

This certificate 15 neather an nssurnnce as fo the foture vinbility of the Company nor of the efficiency or

effectivencss with which the manngement hns conducted the affairs of the Compan

Place: Ludhinnn
Dhate: 18042023

For Abhinay Khanna -!':_Ausn-cilm

Compuany Secretaries

LDIN: AO46944 EODDI 26276



KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab
Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.com; Telephone No: 0161-2671428
CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100

www.kumarautocast.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Members Folio No

Client ID No

DP ID No

Name of the Member
Name of the Proxy Holder

No of Shares held

I/'We record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED being
held on Saturday, 30™ day of September, 2023 at 12:30 P.M at registered office of the Company
situated at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.

(Signature of Member/Proxy)
NOTES:

1. Shareholder/ Proxy is requested to bring the Attendance Slip duly signed for admission to
the meeting hall.

2. Physical copy of notice of the Annual General Meeting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is sent in the permitted mode(s) to all members.
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab
Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.com; Telephone No: 0161-2671428
CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100

www.kumarautocast.com

Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014/

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

Email ID

Folio No./Client ID

DP ID

I/'We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature: ,or failing him
Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature: ,or failing him
Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature: ,or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at Annual General Meeting
of the Company, to be held on the Saturday, 30" day of September, 2023 at 12:30 p.m. at Registered
Office of the Company situated at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab. and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

RESOLUTIONS:-

Ordinary Business

1. | ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS, BALANCE SHEET, REPORT OF
DIRECTOR’S AND AUDITOR’S FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 31°" MARCH, 2023




2. | RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ASHISH KUMAR SOOD

3. | RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. AJAY KUMAR SOOD

4. | RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ARUN KUMAR SOOD

Affix
Signed this...... dayof......... 2023. Revenue

Stamp
of RE 1

Signature of shareholder: Signature of proxy holder(s):

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as a
proxy and such person cannot act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. In case of joint holders, the signature of any holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.

4. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, Please refer to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

5. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statementis of KUMAR AUTODCAST
LIMITED (“the Company”’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2023, and the stalement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standslone financial stalements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2023, and its
profit, changes In equity and its cash flows for the year ended on thal date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs)
specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibiiities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are indepandent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
undear the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules ﬂ'lEi‘EiJH .

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance wi B ““\\
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidé) [@u *]H.;i‘,,
have oblained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our gph IR o ‘|| \
[\&, {lﬁffurf‘f .-:Tgx"l.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not Include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

therean.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility s to read the other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether such other information is malerially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materally misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibllity for the Standalone Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matlers stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance inciuding other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and the design, implementation and mainienance of adequate
Internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounling records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatemant, whether due to
fraud aor error

In pr-aparlng the standalone financial statemanis, managameant is rn-pnrj_llhi-
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
disclosing, as applicable, mattars related to going concem and usnr}f fl‘;a gg{ng
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concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsiblilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material missiatement whether due to
fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if individually or in the aggregate
they could reasonably be expecied to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing we exercise
professional judgment and mainlain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also.

# |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial
slatements whether due to fraud or error design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting @ material misstatemeant resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion forgery
intentional omissions misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal contrals relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances Under Section 143(3)(iof the Act we are also
responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by managemenl.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of th (e N
concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidanc:s -ag:l ) )
]
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whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a materal uncerainty exsls, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report o the related
disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are
inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report However
future events or conditions may cause fhe Company o cease 10
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluale the overall presentation structure and content of the financial
statements including the disclosures and whether the financial
statemants represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the siandalone financial
statements thal, Individually or in aggregate, makes it probable thal the
aconomic decisions of a reasonably knowladgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be Influenced. We consider quantitative matenality
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the resulls of our work, and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standalone financial statemeants.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other
matters the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idenfify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requiremenis regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable
related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermance we

datermine those matters that were of most signficance in the audit of the

financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit

matlers. We describe these matters in our audilor's reporl unless law or

requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely

rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should not be communicated

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interes! benefits of ;,wj‘nv

communication. f Vs — \
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the
Order”) issued by the Central Government of india in terms of Section
143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposas of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of proft and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the
Cash Flow Statement deall with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalong Ind AS financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended,

&) On the basis of the written reprasantations received from the directors
as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

fy With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B,

g) In our opinion, the managenal remuneration for the year ended March
31, 2023 has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 187 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

h}) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information. aud
according to the explanations given to us; ,rf’ b fi
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i) The Company has disclosed its impact of pending litigations in
the financial statements. Refer to MNote no. 27 of Notes to
Financial statements.

) The Company has no long-term centracts including derivative
contracts

ili} The company has not paid any dividend during the year and is
not required to transfer amounts to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

(@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 27 to the standalone
financial statemenis no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (edher from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entites (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whalscever by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiarias.

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of ils
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 27 to the standalone
financial statements, no funds hawe been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parlies"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding FParty ("Uttimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any (c) Based on the audit procedures
that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come fo our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
naothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause {i) and (i) of Rule 11{g) as

provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any ﬂfé:'— o
misslatement
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v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the
year and has not proposed final dividend for the year.

FOR VINAY 8 ASSQCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Eﬁn-ﬂ 62N

Pacs, Reske - o146 2o
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DATED: 30.05.2023

PLACE: LUDHIANA i
Vinay
UDIN: 2308298BBGWOGUBS79 P



Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members
of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2023, we report that:

i) a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including gquantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment
(B) The Company does not have any Inlangible Assels;

b)  Property, Piant and Equipment have been physically verified by
the management during the year and there is a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regards to the size of the company and the nature of its
assets and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification;

c)  Based on our examination of the propery lax receipts and leass
agreement for land on which building is constructed, registered
sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we
report that. the titte in respect of self-constructed buildings and
tle deeds of all other immovable properties (other than
properties where the company is the lesses and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and
Equipment are held in the name of the Company as al the
balance sheat date.

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year,

e} No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,




i}

i)

i)

vi)

a)

b)

As per the Information furnished, the inventory has been
physically verified by the managemen! during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, and, the
coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
operation. No discrepancies of 10% or mora in the aggregate for
each class of inventary were noticed between the physical stock
of inventory and the books of accounts,

The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregale; from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of currenl assets. The
quarterly returns or staterments filed with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreemant with the books of account of the
Company.

The company has not made any investments In, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year
and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of CARO 2020 s not
applicable;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not given any loans, purchased
investment, given guarantees and security which are covered
under the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, therafore
no comment is called for;

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which
are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable

According to information and explanation given to us, the Central

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered

by the Company,




vil)

viii)

ix)

a)

b)

d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and
the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues Including goods and services tax, provident fund,
emplayees’ state insurance, Income tax, sales tax, service lax,
excise duty, customs duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods
and Service tax, Provident Fund, Empioyees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in amrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues as referred to in sub-clause (a)
which have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

These were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessmenls under the Income Tax
Act, 1861,

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any govemnment
authority.

The term loans outstanding at the beginning of the year, and the
new term loans raised during the year, were, applied for the
purposes for, which, they were obtained,

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the year for long-term purpau-sas.--hg:. h
Company. i B




x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

bj

b)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or
associale companies, hence reporting under clause 3{ixHe) 15
not applicable,

The Company does not have any subsidiary, |oint venture or
associate companies, hence reporting under clause 3{ix)f) Is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year
and hence reporting under clause 3{x}a) of the Order is not
applicable.

Curng the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or converible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting
under clause 3(x}(b) of the Order iz not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit;

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Compantes (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date
of this report,

No whistie-blower complaints were received during the year by
the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given o us, the company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly,
clause 3(xii) of the Crder is not applicable;

According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 168 of Companies Act where applicable and
the details have been disclosed In the financial statemants as
reguired by the applicable accounting standards:
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Riv)

xv)

nvi)

xvii)

1wiill)

xix)

The company is not required to keep an internal audit system
given the size and nature of its business and hence reporting
under clause 3(xiv] of the Order is not applicable;

In our opinion during the year the Company has not enterad into
any non-cash {iransactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of action 182
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required fo be registerad
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order Is not
applicable.

The company does not have any Cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit. The immediately preceding
financial year cash loss is as follows:

Financial Year  [Loss (Rs in Lacs) |
2021-2022 52.87
2022-2023 | NIL

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during
the year and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviil) of the
order is nol applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratics, againg and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other Information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report. The company s capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date We however
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and fulure events or




a going concern. \We neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all the liabilities faliing due within a period od one
year from balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due;

Ax) The company is not required to spent under CSR activity u/s 135
of Companies Act 2013, hence reporting under clause 3{xx) of
the QOrder is not applicable.

Firm eg No-00
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Reporl

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED, (“the Company™) as of 31* March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year anded on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
crtena established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial
Controlzs over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate inlernal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient condust of its
business, including adherence lo the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financlal reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals
Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporti
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establizshed and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of tha intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over
financial reporing included obtaining an understanding of intemnal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivenass of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matenal
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinien on the Company’s internal
financial contrals system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
intarnal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detaill, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts
and expenditures of the company are baing made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company, and [3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or ftimely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due fo error or fraud may occur
and not be detected Also, projections of any evsluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to fulure periods are subject to the
risk that the Internal financial control over financlal reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degfgs. of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. L




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March
2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control
stated in the Guidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indfa
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

1. CORFPORATE INFORMATION

Kumar Awtocast Limited ("the Company”) is a public Fmiled Company domiciled in India and
incorporated on January 8, 1985 undar the provisions of tha Compamnes A, 1956 having its
registerad office C-178, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana P 141010, The Company i llated
on Metropolitan Stock Exchange (MSE) The Company & sngaged In the manufacturing of
General Gasting of Steel for Auto Parts. The Company™s manufacturing fecililies are ooated Bt
Foesl Poinl. Ludhisna, Punjab. The Financial statements were suthorized by the Board of
Cireciors for issue in accordance with resalulion passed cn 30005 2023,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPRATION:

The fmancial siajements of the Company have. bean prepared in accordance with Indian
Accouniing Standards (IND AS) nobfied under Companies (Indian Accounting Siandards)
Rules, 2015 Financial statements for the year endad 31 March 2023 have boan prepared in
decordanca with IND A3 nobiied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2055 The financial statements kave been prapared on a hislorice! cost basis, except for the
following assets and labiltiag:

i} Defined benafit plane-plan assets are measured using the current value of plan assets and
cuffenl actuarial assumpticns which should reflact the beno’its offerad under the plan and
plan assets before and afier the plan amendmeant, cutaliment and setiiement

The financal slatements ara presentad in indian Rupess [INR') and all values aré raanded 1o
nearas] lacs (INF 00,0008, except when otharwise indwcated,

2.2 CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Company presanie assels and labilitles In the belanca sheet pased on currentnon-
curren! classification. An assel s treated 35 cumment when d is:

- Expacied o be realized o intended 1o be sold of cansumed in normal aperating cycle
Held primarily for purpose of trading
- Expecied fo be realized wilhin twolve months after the reportng petiod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from baing exchanged or used to sette a liabdity
for &l least twedve months after (he reporling period =




Al citvar pssels are classified as pon-current,

A llability is curront whan:

- It 8 expectad to be seiffed in normal opereting cycle

- Il & hald primarily for purpose af trading

= It is due 1o be settlad within twelve manths aler the repoting penod, or

- There is no unoonditional rghl to defer the selllement of the Babilty for o teast twelve
manths after the reporing panod

Al ather Eabifles are clazsiliod a5 non-curment

Deferred fax assels and daferred lzx lisbiities sre classified a5 ron- cumend assels and
linbilities. '

The operating cyclé |s the time between the acguisition of assats for processing and thair
raalization in caah and cash eguivalents; The Company has idenified fwehe maonths as its

operating cycle,

2.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Planl and equipmeant incloding capital work In progress are stated o cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaimment oases, If any. Tha cost comprises of
purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and ofher incidental expenses directly atirbutable and
related 1o acquisition and instaliation of the concermed asseta and are further adusted by the
amount of GET credit avaded wheréver applicable. When significant pars of pland and
equipment are required 1o be repiaced ot intarvais, the Company depreciates them separately
zased on their respeciive useful lives, Likewise, whin 8 major inspection is pedomed, its cost
I& recognised in the camying amount of the plant. and equipmen! s a replacament Il the
recognition criteria are salishied. All other repalr and mainfenance costs are recognised In
profil or loss as incurred. The present value of the expecled cost for the decommissioning of
an as3et after its use & Included |n the cost of the respective assal f the recognition criteria for
a provigion e mel

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inlally recognised is
deracognised upon disposal or when no future economic banefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss ansng on derecognition of (he ssss (ealoulated as the difforenca
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying smount of the asset) & includad in tha
income statement when the asset is derecognisad.

Capital wark- in- progress includes cost of properly, plant and equipment under inslaliation /
undar davalopment & ot ihe belance shaat date,

Th-e. residual valuss, usaful lives and methods of deprecation of properdy, plant and
equipment ate reviewsd at sach financial year end and adjusied prospectvely, if appropriate

Hepreciation on property, plant and equipment s provided on pro rata basls on siralghi-line
muathod using the useful lives of the assats estimated by management and in the manner
prescribed In Schedule || of tha Companias Act 2013 o
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24 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangibie assets soquired saparately ane measored on inital recogniton 81 cost. Following
indial recognificn, intangible assets are camed at cosl wss accumulated amortization and
accumutated impairmen) losses, il any. Intemally generated inlangibles. excluding canibalisad
development cost, are nod capitalsed and the relaled sxpanditune is rellected in statermant of
Profit -and-Loss in the percd in which the expenditure s Incormed. Gosl comprises this
purchasa price and any altnbutable cost of bringing fhe essat bo s working condition for its
mtended uss

The usaful bwes of intangible aseets e assessed as aither finite or indefinita. Intangibla
assels with finile lives are amortised over their useful aconomic Fves and aseessed for
impairment whenever there s an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amartirabion penod and the amoriization method for an iMangtle assal wilh & linite useful [Ma
is raviewed al f=ast &l the end of sach réporting pariod. Changes in the expected usaful life or
the axpacted pattern of consumption of fulure econamic bonafis embodied in the asset is
accounied for by changing the amartization period or method. 85 approprisis and are freatad
a5 changes in accounting esbimates. The amonzaton expense on intangible assets with finde
Inves is recognisad in the atalement of profit and loss in he expense calegory consistent with
the funchon of the intangible asseis Intangible assets with indsfinite useful lives are nol
amortised, but are tested for Impairment annually, either individually er at the cash-generaling
unit leval, The sssessmeni of indafinita e @ roviawed annually to delarminag whather (ha
inctefinite life continues to be supportable. If nol, the change i uselul life from Indefinita to
finite i mada an a prospactive basls.

(Gaing of lossas ariing from disposal of the intangible asests are measured ga the difference
vatwien the ret disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognised
i ihe siztement of profit and loss when the sssets are disposed of,

Intanpible assets with finlte uselul e are amortised on & straight line basis over thoi
estimated usaful life.

2.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company aseesses, &l each reporting date, whether ihene is an indication thal an asset
may be impaired. It any indication swsis, or when annual impaiment testing for an asset is
requirad, the Company estimales fhe assai's recoverabls amodel. An sssal's fecoverabla
amount is tha higher of an asset's or cash-genecating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
dispasal and s value In use Ruocoverable amount is determined for an individual assel,
unbess the asse! does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
othes assels or Companies of assels. Whare the carying amounl of an asset or CGU excseda
s recoverable amount, the assel @ considorad impsaired and |8 witten down to its
recaverable amount

In asseszing value In use, (he estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to thesr present
ValuE using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts cumrant markel assessments of the time vake
of manay and tha risks specific 1o the asset. In determining fair value less cosls of disposal,
recant market trangactions are laken info sccount, i avalable, i no such transactions can ba
idantified, an appropriate valuation model & ysed. Impaimant basss Ingluding impaiment on
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inveniones are recognesed in the statement of profl and loss. After impaimment, deprecation =
pravided an the revisad camying smourd of the aseat aver its remaining usaful life.

2.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financiaé mstrument is any confract thal gives rise to o financial aasel of ong enlity and &
financial lability or egqudy instrument of ancther entity,

The Company classifies iz financial assets in the follewing maasurement calagarias:

- Thase o be measursd substequently al falr value (e2her through othes comprehensive
incame, or through prafit or loss)

- Those measurad = amortized cost
Inithal recognition and moasuroment

All financial pasets ane recognised initially at fair value phs, in the case of financial assets nod
recorded at fair value ihvouwgh profit or loss, transaction costs that are. attributable fo tha
ascguigition of the financial assst.

Subsaquent measuremani

For puwposss of subsequeni measurement fmancml assets: are classified in followng
calegoriss:

- Debi instruments at feir value through profit and koss (FYTPL)

- Debt instrumenis al fakr value fhrough other comprehensive income (FUTOCH

- Debl instrumenis al amonised cost

- Equily inatruments

Whera asseis are measured ol falr value, gains and losses are-either recognised antirely |n
the stetement of profit and loss (i.e. fair valee through profit or loss), or recognised in other
comprehensive mcome (& falr value through other comprahanae income). For invesiment
in debl instruments, this will dapend on the business model in which tha invesimeant is held,
For imvestment in equity instrumaents; this will depend on whathar the Company has made an
irrevocable election ot the tme of iniial recognition to account for equily melremenis al
FVWTOCL

Dabt instruments at amorlised cost
A Dabl instrament is measured al amortised cost § both fhe folowing conditions are mat

a) Business Model Test The cbjectve s io hold the debt instrumenl to collact the
contractual cash flows {rather than 1o sall the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to
realize its fair value changes).

b) Cash flow characteristica test: The contractuad terms of the debt instrument give rge an
specific dates to cash flows thet are solely payments of principal and interaat on principal
amaotint outsfanding.

This catzgory is mosl relevant to the Compary, After initial measurement. such financial
aseals afa subseguenty measured at amortised cost using fhe effective interest rate (EIR)
mathod. Amorlised cost s calculated by faking inle account any dh:punLnr pramium on
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acquisiton and fees or cosis fthat are an integral part of EIR, EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts ihe estimated fulure cash receipts avier the sxpected ife of the financial instrument
ar 8 shorter peniod, whare approprate; o the gross canying amount of the financial asset
When calculating the affective interest rate, the Company estmates [he expected cash flows
by considering all the canlractual terms of tha fmancial nstremant bl does nol coneidar the
axpacied credil losses. The EIR amorization 5 included in financa incoma in profit or loss
The losses arsing from impairment &re recognised in the profi! or loss. This category
genarally applies o trada and other recervables.

Dabi instruments at fair value through OCI

A Debl instrumant s measurad &t fair valus through other comprehansive income i following
critesia are mat

a) Business Model Test: The objactive of financial instrument fa schisved by both cofiecting
confraciual cash flows and for sefing financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractiual lerms of the debt instrument give rise on
specifiic dates fo cash flows that arg solely paymaenis of prncipal and milerest on- prncipal
amount outstanding

Debt insbrurment includad within the FWYTOC] catagory sra maasurad initialty as wall 85 &t each
reporting dafe at fair velue. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comorehensive
incame (OCI), axcept for the racagnition of intarest incoma, impaiment gains or losses and
targign exchange gamns or losses which are recognisad in statemant of profil and loss, On
derecognition of assel, cumulative gain or leas previeusly recognised in OCI is reclassified
frarn (he aquity to statemant of profit & loss. Intarest eamed whilel holding FUTOC! financial
assel i reportad as interest income using the EIR method

Dabi instruments at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual calegory for finencial instruments. Ary financial instrumenl, which does
nal maeat 1he crtara for amortised cost or FYTOG!, 18 classified as at FYTPL. A gain or loss an
a Debt instrument that is subsequently messurad al FVTPL and is not & part of 8 hedging
refationship |s recognized in statement of pralil of loss and presented nat in the statement of
profit and Joss within other gains or lossas in (he period in which it arses. intarast income from
frese Dedt instruments is included in ciher income

Equity investments of ather antities

All Baguity investments in scope of IND AS 109 ame measeed &t (=r value, Equity Instruminis
which ara held for trading and confingent cossideration recognised by 2n acquirer in 2
business combination 10 which IND AS103 applies sre classified as al FVTPL. For all other
aquity mstruments, the Company may make an imevocable election lo present in ather
comprehansive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on Initial recognition
@nd I [rravocabls

If the Company decides to classify an equity Inslrumant-as at FYTOGI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recogrised In the 0G| There is no
recycling of the emounts frem OCH lo profit and loss, even on sale of investment However. the
Company may transied the cumulative gain or losa within squity. Equity instruments included
within the FVTFL category are measured af fair value with oll changas recognised in the Profit
and kass




Daracognition

A financial asset (or, where applicabls, a part of a financial #ssat or pert of & Company of
similar financial assets) is prmarily derecognised (Le, remaved fram the Company's ataiemsani
of financsal poation} whan

= The rights o recelve cash flows from the assat have explred, or

- (e Company has transfermad Is rights to receive cash fows from the asset or Nas assemsad
&n abligation o pay the recelved cash flows in full without material delay 1o a third parly under
& "pass through' arrangemant and aithar;

ta) The Company kas iransterrad (he rights to recesve cash fiows from the financial ossats or

(i) The Company has retaned the contractual right to recsive the cash fiows of the financial
assal, bul assumes a contractual abligafion o pay the cash fiows ko one or more recipesnts.

Whara the Company has transferred an asset the Company evaluates whethar d has
transferred subslantially all the rnsks and rewards of the ¢wnership of the financial sssets. In
guth cases. the financial asset s derecognised, VWhere fhe entity has not transfered
subatanially all the risks and rewsrds of the ownership of the financial azsets, the financial
aggal s nol derscognised.

Whaa the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially ali risks
and rewards of ownarship of the financial asset. the finenclal assel is derecognised i the
Company has not retained contral of the financial assel. Where the Company retains controd
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recapnised o the sxtant of continuing
invalvarment in the fingncial asgst.

Impairmant of financial assets

In mceordance with IND AS 108, the Company applies expected credi losses (ECL) model lor
medguiament and recognition of impairment loss on the fallowing financial asaset and aradit
sk exposue

- Financiad aseats mapsurad ol amartised cost,

- Financial assels measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI):
The Company follows *simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade recaivablas or contract revanue recelvables;

- All Inase receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of IND AS 17

Undor the simplified approach, the Company does nol fack changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes mpaiment loss aliowance based on Ielime ECLs at esch reporting date, right
from ilx initial recognition. The Company uses & pravision matrix lo determine impaimen| loss
aliowance on lhe portfolic of irada recetvables. The provision matn is based on its Kistorically
observed defsull rates over (he oxpectod e of trade receivable and is adjusiad for forward
Iooking estmales At every reporting date. the historical cbserved defaull rates are updated
and changes in the forward Inoking estmates are analyzed

For recognibon of impairment loss on ofher financial assels and risk exposure, the Company
defermines . whether there has been a significant increase in the credil #ek since infizd
recognition, i credil risk has not increased significanty, 12-month ECL Is used to provida for
impaimment joss. However, if credil risk has increased significantly, 1IFul;iml El:L ig used. I1. in
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subsequent panod, credit quality of tha instrument mproves awoh that thera I no longer a
significant inerease in credll risk sinoe inflisl recogndion, [hen tha Company . reveris to
recognizing imgairmeant loss allowance based on 12- monfs ECL

(1} Financial liabilithes:

Inttial recognition and measuremant

Financial kabiltes are classifiad at inttal recognition 2 fmancial kabd#ies at fair value through
profit or joss, koans and bomowings, and payabbes, mel of directly alinbulable fransaction
costs, The Company financlal liabilities include loans and Bormewings incliding bank overdrafl,
frade payable. trade deposits, retention money, lisbiifies towards services, sales ncentives
and other payables:

The measurement of firancial lisbilities depends on their classfication, as described balow

Trade Payahles

Thess amounts represent llabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the and of financial year which are unpaid The smounts are unsecured and are wsually paid
within 120 days of recognition. Trede and other payables are precanted as current Mabilities
unkess payment s not due withm 12 months aller the separiing panicd. They are recognised
initia®ty ai fair vaiue and subsequsnlly measurad at amortized coat uging EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Finoncial liabilities at fair value through profit oc loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upan initial recognifion s af fair value through profit or loss.
Fimancial liabiites are clasalfied a8 hedd for trading if thay are incurmed for the purposa of

repuichasing in the naas lam,
Gains of [pases on liabiktes held for trading are recognised in ihe statement of profit and loss,

Financial Habilities designated upon initia! recognition al fair value through profit or loss are
desgnated as such at the initial date of recognition, and enly if the crieria in IND AS 109 are
saliefed. For ligbilitbes designated as FVTPL, fair valus gains! losses atinbutable to changes
in awn credii risk are recogrised In OC| These gains/ loss are not subsequently transfered fo
profif and logs, Howaver, the Company may transier the cumulative gain or Izss within aquiy,
All other changes In fair value of such liability ste recognised in the statement of profit or loas.
The Campany has not desighabect any linancial liabdity as at far vakie throogh profit and lass

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised et fam value, ret of ransaction cost incurred. Allar initial
regogniton, inarest-baaring loans and borowings are schaaguently measurad sl amorfised
cost using the EIR method Geine and |osses are recognised in profil or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amartised cost is
caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquiskion: and faes or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortizalion & Includod as fnance costs in the
statement of profil and Ioss.

Financial guaranies contracis

Financial guarantae contracts issued by the Company are thoze contracie that require a
payment 1o be made o reémburse the holder for & loss |t ihcurs bacause the specified dabtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the. tarms of & debd instrument,



Fmancial guarantes contracts are tecognssd mitkally as a labi®y ol far value, adusted for
franzsaction costs that am directly attributable to the Eswsnca of the guarantes. Subsagquently,
ihe labilly is messured at the higher of the amount of boss allvwance determined as per
impairmeni requirements of IND AS 109 and the amouwnl recognized less: cumulative
amartization

Derocognition

A financial liability |s derecognised when the obligation under the kabiily is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Whan an exsiing financial liabilily is reclaced by another fram the samae
lender on substaniially different terms, or the terma of an exdsting labillly ane substantially
maodified, such an exchange or medication is treated &5 the derecogmeton of the onginal
liakility and the recognition of & new liabilily, The difference In fhe respectve camymg amcunts
ie racognised In the statement of profit and kbss

Offsetting of financial instrumeants:

Financials aseels and fnanciel kabiities are offsel end the nel amount s repocted in the
balance sheat # there s a currently enforceable legal rght 1o offsel the recogmisad amounts
and ihane 1580 intanfion 1o sattle on & net basis, to realize the assets and ealtlo the abilines

simultaEnsadisly
Raclassification of financial assais:

The Company delermines classiicaton of financial assets and liabilites on inifial recognition,
After inihal recognition, no reclessfication ® made for financial sssets which are equidy
ingfrurmanis and financial lebilites. For finpncial assetls which are debt ngtrements, a
reclagsification = made only if there ig a change n tha business model for managing fthoss
assals. Changes o the business model are expectéd to be infreguant. The Company's senlor
managemant delermines change n the busmess model 85 2 resull of extemal or intemal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operalions. Such changes are evident fo
gadernal parties A change in the business model ocours when the Company either bagins or
ceasss to pedomm an activily that is significan! to Its operations. If the Company reciassiies
financlal assets. it applies: the reclassificetion prospectvely from the reclassdication date
which is the lirst day of the immediately next reporting pericd following the change in business
model The Company dose not restate any previously recognised gaing, losses (including
impairment gaing or losses) or inlerest.

2.8 INVENTORIES
a) Basls of valuation:

Iy Inventores other (han scrap malerals are vakusd 21 bower of cost and nel reslizables value
after praviding cost of obaolescence, f any. Howewer, maierials and other nams held for use
in the production of inveniotias are not written down below cost If the finighad products in
which they will bé incorporated are expacted to be sold al or above cost The comparison of
coal find net realizable value |s made on &n (tem-by-item besks

it} Invastary of scrap matenals have been valued al nel realizable value
b) Mathod of Valuation:

I} Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost
mathed and comprises all costs of purchase, duthes, laxes {olher than those subssquently
recoverable from tax authorities) and all ather costs incurmed in bringing the inveslaries to their
present kacation and condition 3 L,:.,ﬂ‘_q:._?":\_-‘_
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ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direst Isbow and an appropriale
shara of fiwed and variable production overheads and oxcise duly @8 applicable. Fixed
production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilites
Cost is determined on moving weighted avarage basis.

iil) Cost of traded goods has been delermined by using First in First ol (FIFD) method and
comprises all costs of purchasa duties, laxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringng e invenforas (o ther prasant
lacaton and condition.

Iv) Neot realizabla value Is the estimated selfing price n the ordinary course of business, loss
eslimated costs of complebion and eslimatad costs naceseary o maks the sala.

28 TAXES
Tax sxpense for the yvear comprses of curmant tax and defarrad tay.
a) Currant Tax

i) Current incame fax, assets and Eabiliies are messured &t the amount expected io be paid to
ar recovered from the taxation auhorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1851 and
the Incoma Computation and Disclosure. Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates
and the [ax laws that are enacied st the reporting date

iy Currant incomie oy relating 1o item recognised outace the stetement of profit-and loss is
recognised oulside profil or loss (either in other comprehensive Income of aquily). Curment lax
iams are recogaised i comelabion to the enderlying transections aither in DG or directly in
Equsly

b) Deferrad Tax

Deferred tax i provided weing the abiity mathod on lemponary diffeiances betwaaen the tax
bases of assats and labdities and fheir carnying amounts for financal reporting purpossas at
Tha raponing date.

Deferred tax asseis and labilities are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused lax losses. Deferred tax assels are
recognised 1o the extenl [hal it is probable that takabhe profit will be avallable against which
the deductible lemporary differences, and the carry forwasd of unused tax credits and unussd
tax Inasas can be ullised,

The carmying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed &l sach reporting date and reduced o
the gxdent that if is no longer probable thatl sufficient taabin profd will be available to abiow all
or parl of tha deferred tax assel to be uliised Unmecognised defarred tex assets srs re-
asseased al each reporting dale and are recognized o the extent that i has become probable
that fulute taxable prafits will allow the deferred tox asset fo be recovensd

Deferred tax asssts and liahilities ane measured st the tax rates that are expecied 1o apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settied based on lax rates (and tax laws)
thal have bean enacted or substantively anacted ol the reporfing date.

Defarrad tax relating to items recognised culsida the statement of profit and loss is recognised
ouiside the statement of peofit and loss (sither in other comprehensive income of in egusty),
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Deferred tax lems are recogaisad in corretatian o the underkireg ransaction either in GO or
dirget in aoully

210 REVENUE RECOGNITION
a)  Sale of Goods

The Company recognizes révenue when control over the promised goods or services is
transferred to the custemar al an amount thot reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects 1o be antitled In exchange for those goods or servicas

Revenue & adjustod for vargbla considerstion sech as discounts, rebates, refunds; crodits,
price conceselons, Incanlives, or ofher similar itams b 8 contract whan thay ane highly
probable 1o be provided. The amount of revenue axcludes-any amount cillectoed an baball of
third parties

The Company recognises revenue ganerally af the pomt in time when the producis ame deliverad
1o cusiomer or whiegn d is delivered to a carmier for sxpor sale, which s when the conlrol ovar
preduct is transfesred to the custormer. In conlracts whara fresght = armangad by he Company
and recovared from the customers, the same is realed a5 8 separale perlomancs obilgation
and revenue is recognized when such freight services aneranderad.

In revenus amrangements with mulliple performance obligations, the Company accaunts far
individial products and services separately i they are dislingd = Le. If a product of sefvice is
separately identifiable from other ilems in the arrangement and if & customer can banidit from
it The considaration Is allecaled botween separate products and sarvicas in the amangemam
based on thelr stand- akone sefling prces. Revenus from sake of by products are mciuded in
revenUe.

b) Interest Income

Interest mcome from @ financial assel is recogrised when it is probable Mat the economic
bensfiis will fiow to the Company and the amount of income can be measwed reliably.
Irterast incomsa | accrued on o time basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable. which is the rae that execlly discounts estimated fulure
cash receipts through the sxpecied (fe of the financial ssset o thal assel's nel carrying
amount on inslial recoaniton.

2.11 EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS
(i} Short-term obligations

Lianilities for wages and salanes, including non-monetary benefds that are expecied fo be
solllsd wholly within twelve maonths after the end of the perod in which the employees render
Iha related service are recagnised in respect of employes service upto the and of the reporting
period and ene-messurad al the amount expected lo be pald when the llabfies are satiisd.
The liabilites are presanted as curfent employes benefit obligations in the balance sheet.




[ii) Other long-term amployes banefit obligations
&) Gratulty

The Employes's Gratwly Fund Scheme, which s gefined benefl plan, @ managed by
Gompany. The labilities with nespect to Gratuity Plan are determined by acluarial ealuation on
projected unit cradid method on the balance sheat datle The didference, ¢ any, between the
actiarial valuation of (he gratuity of employees at the year end and the baiance of funds is
provided for os ossets! (Babilily) in 1he books. Met intares! i caloslated by applying the
discount rata to the net defined bonofit lisbiity or essst. The Company fecognizes the
following changes in the net defined bonefit obligatan vnder Employes benefit expense in
siatement of profil or loss

1. Service costs comprising curren! service costs, past-service cosls, gaing and losses on
cirtailments and non-routine setiements

2 Ml injeresl skpense or incame

Remeasuraments, comprising of actuanal gains and lossas, the sffect of the ssaet cedling,
exciuding amounts included in net interest on the nel defined benefil [@bility and the return on
plin assets (excluding amounts included in nel mlersst on the nat defined benefd liahiity), are
recognised immeadiately in the Balance Sheet with a comesponding debit or credit to relsined
garnngs through DT in the period in which they occur. ReEmeasurameants are not reclassified
b predit or less in subsequent periods

b} Provident fund

Retiramant benafit in the form of provident fund i & defned contribution schems, Thea
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable 1o the provident fund The
Company recognizes contribution paysbis through provident fund schame as an expense,
when an smployes renders the related services. If the coniibuiion payable to scheme for
garvice recoived before the balance-shes! dete exceeds the confribution siready paid, the
aeficit payable 1o the schema is recognised as lisbility after deducting the contribution already
paad. If the contribution alfeady paid excesds he contribulion due for services recalved bafora
the balance shest dabs, then excosses recognised as an asset fo the exient Thal the
prepaymant will lead to, for example. 8 reduction in future payment or @ cash refund

¢) Compensated Absences

Accumidated leave which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months is treated as short
term employes benefit. The Company measures the expéctod cosl of such absancas as the
additional amount that it expacts to pay as & result of {he uvnussd entillement and is discharge
by Lha year and

212 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Gowernmant Grants, f any are mcognised at their fair value when there is reasonabla
Assurance that the grant will be recerved, and all the allachad condibions will be compliad with

When the grant ralstes to an expensa Hem, I i recognised es income on @ systemalic basis
aver ihe pariods that the related cosls, for which i is intended 1o compansate, are expansed.
Whan the grant relates to-an asasl i B recognimad as noome in 3 ovel the

expected useful life of the related asset. L uhisg
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Whan the Company receives granis of non-monatary assats, the asset and grant aso recardad
ol fair value amounts and released lo profil or loss over the expeclad useful e in 3 pattam of
consumption of the benafit of the undarlying asset

213 SEGMENT ACCOUNTING:

The company has anky single segment of busihess Hence segmeni accounting is nol
resguared,

2.14 EARNINGS FER SHARE

Basic earnings per shars are calculoled by dividing the not profit or loes for the period
atinbutable to eguity sharehckdars by the weighted sverage number of eguily shares
outstanding during the pericd, The weighted average number of squity shares outstanding
during the pariod ls adjuatad for events such as bonus iesus, bonus elameant in o rights. issue,
share spiit, and reverse share splil {(consolidation of shares) thal have changed the numbar of
equity shares outetanding, withoul a coresponding changs In resources,

For the purpose of calculsting diuted eamings per shano, the ned profil or loss for the panod
afiributable to squity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutsianding
during ihe period are adjusted for the affect of all patentialy dikdive aquity shares

215 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost includes interast and other costa incurred in connection with the barrowing of
funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs directly altributable 1o the acquisiton, copstrection or production of an asset
that necessarily tekes a substantial pancd of Uma o gel ready for ils mlended use or sale are
capilalised as parf of the coal of the respective asset. All oiher borrowing cosis are recognaad
@s expanss in the period in which thigy occur,

2.16 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceplionsl #ems are transachons which due to their size o incidence are separataly
disciosed 10 enable a full understanding of the Company’s financial performance. lfems which
may be conmidered sxceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains o losses on
dsposal of investmanis of subsidaries, associale and joinl ventures and Impalment
Ipssesfwrile down in tha valus of investment in subsidiares . associaies and joini ventures and
significant disposal of fixad assels

247 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash a1 Banks snd on hand and
short-term deposits with an original matunty of thres months or less, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes:in vakin

2.18 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provigions

A provision is recognised when the Company has-a present cbligation (legal or constructiva)
&% a resull of past avent, it s probable that an outliow of rescuices embodying economic
benelits: will be required lo satthe the obBgation and a refliable estimate can be made of the
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amount of the obligation. These eshimalos are reviewsad af @ach reponing date and adjusisd (o
reflact the current best estimales.

If the effect of the lime value of manay s matarsl, provisions are discounted using 8 currani
pre-tax rate that raflecis, whan approprate, (he rsks specilic i the liability. When déscounting
ig uged, the increase In the provision dus o the paseags of e i3 recognisad g8a 2 finance
cosl

Contingent Habllities

A contingent liability 15 2 possible oblgation that arises fram past events whosse axsiance will
be confermed by the occumence ar non-occurrence of one o more uncerain fulure events
bavond the control of the Company o a present obligation thal is nod recognisad because i s
ned probable that an cutficw of resources will be required 1o sellle the obligation. & contingent
liakllity slsc arises 0 exiremely ram cases, where there is a labillty that cannot be recognised
because f cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not mecognise a contingent
lakility' bul discloses ke exslence m the financial statamants unless the prababildy of oullkow
of resources is remole

Provesons, contingent liatalifies. confingeni asssate-and commilments are reviewed at each
balance sheel dale

219 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Company measures financial instruments &t fair value at each balance sheel dals.

Fair vislue m the price thal would be recewed to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabdity in an
ardetly ransaciion babween market particpants al the measurement dale. The falr valie
measuremant 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assst or transfer the
linbdlity takes place aither

(i} In the principal markeat for asset or llabiliy, or

(] In the absence of a principal markel. in the most advantsgesas market fos the assel o
[embylbity

The principal or the mos! advaniagecus market must be scoasshils by ha Company,

The far value of an assel or fiabiity 5 messured using the assumptions that manket
parbcipants would use when prcng the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their econamic best interest,

A fair valus measurament of a non- financial asset takes into eccount a market participant's
ghilty to generale sconomic benefits by Using Ihe assel in its highest and best uss or by
safling it to another market participant that would usae the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techrigues thal are appropriale in the circumstances and for
which sufficient doata are available to measure fair valus, maxmising the usa of relevant
obsarvable inpuls and minimizing the use of unobservabla inpuls.

All gssels and lisbiiities for which fair value i measured or disclosed i tha financial
stalamens afe mhgmi:m:l Withil.'l five: fair -.Ia;un hiesarchy, described as T-:dlmru. bazed on the
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Level 1- Quoted [unadjusted] makal prices in active manets lor idenlical assats or liabites

Level 2- Valualioh techniques for which the lowest lsvel Inpul thal |s significant 1o tha fair
walue measurement i deectly or indiracily observable

Level 3- Valualion techniques for which the lowest val inpul that |8 signilicant to the falr
vilue measureman] b unobservable.

Far nasets pnd lablidies that are recognised in the finarcial statementa on & fecurring basis
the Company determines whether transfars have oooured bebwaen lavals: in the hisrarchy by
re-aasessing categorization (based an the jowes! level mpul thal is significant to fair value
maasurament as & whoda) a1 tha end of each reporiing perad

For the purpose of fair valise disclosures, the Company has detenmined classes of assets and
lisbilifias an the basis of the naturs, charaotenstics and nsks of the asset or Babilty and the
lsval of the tair value hierarchy as axpiained shave
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

HOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Amount Rs. In lacs)
AS AT AS AT
31.02.2023 J1.03.2022

NOTE - 4 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Securiy Deposits 71.74 7174
Licence fees: PFCE 1.04 1.60
72.78) 73.24

NOTE - 5 INVENTORIES

Raw Material 54 81 55 34
Finished Goods 21.23 3268
Shores & Spares R 11.06
Oitvers Malersd 8018 47.53

HE.NI 146.64




FLUMAR ALTOTAST LIMITED
HOTES FORSMNG PART OF THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAH ERDED MARCH 11, 2921

HOTES TO AZCOUNTS |Amount As. In lacs)
Unase e
Trachs riscaivabie fom Falatod pefies - Conbioend Good 1, 0740 1, 0T
Tiads recdnbie - Comdered Good ar 47 2085
Trade Recrvnbles - which hawve sighifosnl soGass n crea® rigk .
1,573.82 i537.83
Liman: Aliosyneoe for Bod s Deabiful Dekds - %
157002 1,397, 05 |
Trade Ascalvabvies againg schadulo (Surment Yasrk
GO Tital
Liss o 8 mosss | B e ) |13 yre [ 20 g | Mo a3 s
1} Lindtigpiiles] Teade e bied — oiialihisned] 157509
il 1,487143 : :
dispuled Trais Roosyabies — cliemid 274
[11] Irppairgd e
Chapaded Trade Heceivatibes = which hawe
il nincET incredee in croo fsk - P [
Trade ezoivables sgoing achadie [Pravicus Yaar)
Paicidais Total
e Newws b B oot |6 e - | 12 e | 2-3 yra | Mora than 3 yis
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nifinpuled Trade Recehalies - credil
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FURAR AUTOCAS T LIMITED
NOTER FORMING PART O0F THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTE FOR THE YEAR FRBED MARCH 31, 2023

HOTLES 7O ACCOUNTS [ ik HA. e haca)
HOTE . T CASH & BANK BALANCE
Cosh aedd Caph Emiivalants
Lasshion Mamd 212
Balances with Schoduled Banks
I Cxirranl &Aoo T.08
ICICH Bl Lid (C0A-12484) .00
1CIC] Bmna | b O A-LET B35
Lheoues. depaarieg D rof o famd 149614
Blaeryry Myotesy Didgusa® dgenad Bards guarsriss Jame
Takak 152,
MOTE « B CUMEENT TAX ASBETH (MET)
Advarcs Pagmen of Toa o] | b BE
LE4} 148 5
HNOTE - 8 OTHER CLURREENT ASSETS
rhor Advances
Achmners fer Latecal A Dervem 4,87 44|
Othars
Papjaad oxperan 1.9 | 1EI
TranE AT aICE 1 V4%
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AR BUTOCART LIMITED

ROTER FORMMNG FART OF THE MINAKCISL STATEMENTA POIT THE YEAR ENDED MAFLCH 31, 3033

HOTER TO ACCOUNTE Mt Ba in haEay
AEAT AEAT
ALA% 004 2 0RG2E
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KUSAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
HOTES FORMING PART CF THE FEMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS iAmaird As. inlacs)
A8 AT AS AT
31.03.2023 BRI e

NOTE - #7 OTHER FINANCIAL LINBILITIER

Gt hor Py b 168.07, 11317
hndry Paviling B3.51 5
s Feo Ewyakio 1.1 0,04
Saatuitrry Auttil Fasy Fyahis af LI
Eluctriciy Exp. Payabla 54.TH 1273
Expiraen Poynblo .00 183
Innemal acrusd il mol dus 4 5T 30
Imuranc Fand Payabli LA o3
Chaqyuns |saned b o yef clnned 27 .89
Bnournity Dopomil Recaip 015 0.5
Teleghans Exp: Payable 0,6 0,12
Emplayes Benefls Poyabl BE.58 &0.60
Dimeler mrraneralion Paystile 0,18 103
Bomia Payobie 1732 16,05
Lobwe willh wogas Fayahia LTIG! 14,13
Wagea & Snlary Paynhie kgl Ay
18307 LRI A

HOTE - 10 OTHER CURRENT LIARILITIES

AMANCES FROM QUSTOMERS (e e
Estulory Domy Payahis 15,80 8T
ESi Pambie LOT 1.0E
Prarviiien Fund Payshbis 0.3 18}
Praveian Fund Payahble 0.7F nng
Profeseonsl Ta 015 ]
GET payabie 2054 1a.52)
TOS Payahln i34 147
TCE Payalde 1.5 aqe
Funjsl Lobour 'Weilaro Fund Poyabla aay a0
254810 05T

NOTE- 10 8HORT TERM PROWVSION
Achunal Walue of Gaubaty Liabiy ko i0.5h
nEE 2088
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

HOTES FORMING PART OF THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

NOTES TO ACCOLINTS pAmosr Rs. in Woal
Yoar Ended Yuar Braled
.67 2093 My a0ad
HOTE - 30 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Estnn ATLAT lﬂﬁ.#li
Groek Rgvoniss trom Oporalions 4724.77 l:lﬂ-.l'!f
ROTE - It OTHER INCOME
il | oo 5.0 524
Bumniry Ridand= WOFF LLY| nﬂ
Coami [esrnny ooy o
10.85) (.=
HIOTE - 23 COST OF RAW MATERMAL CONILNED
Ry Mairial o biovsd narag) 30000y
137 anf 03
METH . 3 CHANGE (M INVENTORIES OF FIEBHED GOODS, WORKAN PROGAESS & STOOKAN.TRADE
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HUMAR AUTCCAST LIMITED
MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

NOTES TO ACCOLUNTS [Amount As. in kacs
Wear Endad Yoar Endod
31.03, 23023 31.03.2022

HOTE - 24 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salary, Wages & Bonus 496 38 ATQ 47
Chmiuty Expanzan 1173 1085
Contriation to PF & Othar Funds 17.03 21.24
Stal Weltare Exporians 2,11 B.30

53815 519,81

NOTE - I6 FINAMGE COSTSE

inbargsl Expanced a7, 18 42.23

Liihar Bonrowing Coshs b B e 568
50, a7.08

NOTE - 26 OTHER ERPENGES

Auditgm Ramusarallon 160 B |

Cammidaan 0,00 2694

Direotars Remunaration 158.50 a6 00

Eleciriafy Expanes Sl a2 51283

Fraght (Cutwind) LI 1121

Insuranss Exp a7 n

Lagal & Prodessicnal Charpas 57 8

Lizting Fes Expenaes .55 &

Mach|mery Repaln 1580 LR

Madical aypanym 8.7

Mic Expermes 'I?.L'th

Eabate & Dedoum K0 &F

el Fales & Tams BEE]

Repair & Mainl 8.3y

RCE Chargos 000

Sundry Balanges wiall uml

Tasting Changas 016
Travallg & Convayancn (Ohem) A 6F
Winhiche Expanses 1.856|

[TETAL Ba4, 81




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED, LUDHIANA.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mota Na. 27
261 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
A) Contingent lizbilities (to the extent not provided for) {Amount RS in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Liabdiity towards Bank against NIL 246.85"
Bank Guarantes availad
Others. — .t ———
Total NiL 246,85

*Hank Guarantes gven by the company are BMIL (31,03 2022 to. Environmental angmesr Punjab
Poliution Contral Board, Ludhiana of Bs.1 Lakh and Modern Coach Faclory Rasbarelll Re 245 85
lacs),

B} Commitments: ML

C) Undrawn Committed borrowing facility:
The Company has availed working capital [imits amounting fo Rs 1,000 lacs (March 31,
2022 Re 1,000 Lacs) from ICICI Bank, amount of Rs. 408 61 lacs (March 31, 2022 Rs
3245.23 Lacs) remain undranwn as al Masch 31, 2023,

D) Othor Litigation: NIL
E} Leases: NIL
F} Contingent Asset: NIL

26.2 Desclosures pursuant to Ind AS-18 "Emplayes Benefils” (specified undeér section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companiss (Accounis) Rules, 2015) are
given bekow:

Contribution 10 Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under;

(Rg In Lacs)
Particulara | Year ended Year ended
I _ | March 3, 2023 Hm_h_;}_,gggL
Employer's Contribution towards Provident 2.80 368
Fund (PF)
Leave encashment 17.75 17.82
Employer's Coniribution towards Employes 1098 10.79
State Insurance (ESI) Ll
| Penslon Fund 3,439




Dafined Benefit Plan

The empioyees’ Graluity Fund Schema, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the
Company itsall. Under the gratuity ptan, every amployes who has complated al least five
years of service usually gets a gratuity on departure @@ 15 days of st drawn salary for
each completed year of service, The present value of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credil Method, which necognizes aach period
of service a8s giving rise 1o additional snit of eamployes benafit entitlement and measures
gach unit separately 1o bulld up the final obligation. The following tebles summarss the
components of nef benefit expense recognised in the statement of proft or loss and the
funded ststus and amounis recognised in the balance sheel for the respective plans.

a) Reconcillation of opening and eloging balances of Defined Benafit Obligation

Year ended Year ended
March 11, 2023 March 31, 2022
Preaent value obligation 58 ai baginning 4720 47,11
of the year -
Interestcost 3.3 298
Currant Service Cosl 4.42 766
Benefils pald (3.06) (6.14) |
| Remeasurement of (Gain)/Loss ) 1]
- E:pm:u F.d]Luhﬂnnt {0.83) (223)
- Difference in Presenl Value of 2.50 (2.08}
Cbligation .
Present value of obligation a3 &t close 67.53 47 .28
of the year |
bj Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Year ended Yeoar endod
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Fair value of plan asseis al begirning of = *
the year
_Expecled return on pian assets . -
Employer contribution - -
Remeasurement of (Gain)loss in other = -
comprahansive Income
Relum on plan assets excluding interest - -
Incoma
Benofits paid ) o = i
| Fair value of plan assels at yearand | - -
c) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance shest —
Year anded Year ended
— March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Farvalueofplangssets | 20000 ll —§
Present value of defined benafit obligation 57.53 | 4728 |
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet- Asset / {57.53) (47.20)
{Liability) e
.l:::‘.- I--\. _J-I'; '..%I
r:; ||- i) I -.,_:11:'1
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d) Net defined benefit expense (Recognised in the Statement of profit and loss for

the yoar)

Year ended Year ended
_ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Currant Sarviea Cost 8.42 788 |
Nel Interest Cost 3.21 2.08
‘Net defined benefit expense debited fo 11,73 10,64
statemant of profit and loss

#) Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
— —- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Reamoasuremand of (GainyLoss - |
- Experienca Adjustmant (0.93) (2.23) |
- Differsnce in Presant Value of Obligation 2.50 (2.10} |
Recognisad in other comprehensive income 1.57 i4.33)
) Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation
Year ended Yoar ended
March 31, 2023 ‘March 31, 2022 |
‘Martality Table 1AL 2012-14 Uitimate | 1AL 2012-14 UIrmale
Imputed rate of Interest (0} T.3%pa 724% pa_
Impited rate of interest (IS T.M%pa | 6.76% p.a.
Salary Escalation 7.00% p.a 5.00% pa.
Aftrition Rate D/20/50.00% p.a 0r200G0.00% pa.
g) Quantitative senaitivity analysia for aignificant ; mungﬂnnn is as below
1 Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Increase [ (decrease) on present value of defined
bensfits obligations at the end of the year | I
E'i_ll:num' Rate
Incraase by 1% [1.28) (0.589)
Decrease by 1% ! 1.34 0.62
_g:_p_ggpgﬁu . o — —
‘I_:;l_gr_'lj.:gw by 1% 278 0.63
Deacreaas by 1% 1.35) {061}
Attrition Rate . -
Increase by 1% (006} (0.0%)
Docraase by 1% 0.08 0.m
i) Maturity profile of defined benefit abligation
Wilhin the next 12 months {(next annual reporting 039 30.26
periad) i
Between 2 and 5 years 54.47 18.82
Betwean 5 and 10 years 2.81 1.86
AT
= [CA N
[{# { Lubriaag 120
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1. The estimates of rate of escalation In salary consigered |n aciuanal valuation are
after taking Inte account Inflation, sentority, pramation and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market, The above information is
as cerlified by the Acluary,

2 Dizcounl rste & basad on the pravailing madke] yiglds of Indian Govemmant
secunlies as al the balance shaet date for (he estimaled ierm of the obligstions.

3. The senaifivity analyses above have been determined based on & mathod that
exlrapolales the impacl on defined benefit abligation as & resull of reasonable
changes in key assumplions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

28.3 Segment Reporting
Tha Company has ona Dparating segmant as ldentified by the Chiel decision maker
of the company in-accordance with Ind AS-108, “Operating Segment” (specified
undear section 133 of the Companbes Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2015) Therefore, no additional disclosure @& required to be given.

284 The relaled partes as par the lerms of Ind AS-24" Ralated Parly Dischosures”,
ispacified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, mead with Rule 7 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below: -

a) Dotails of Related Parties:

" Sr. No | Particulars “Name of Related Parties
1 Emaiprisas in 1. Kumar Exports
which  dirsclors 2. Kumar Export Industries Pvt. Lid,
are interested
2 Key Managemen! Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (Managing Director)

Personnal Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (Director)

Sh. Ashish Kumar Socod (Director)

Sh. Shrey Bhutani (Independont Director)
5h. Rakesh Dhanda {Independent Director)
amit. Ritu Mehra {Woman Director)

Sh. Pranav Khanna (Company Secretary)

SmL Usha Jayaprakash { Chief Financial Officer)

SRR




b) Transactions with the Related Parties: {Rs. In Lacs)

..............

Nature of Transactions during | Enterprises  in  which | Key Management
the year directors are interestad Parsannal
2022-23 2021-22 2022.23 | 2021-22

Purchases/Labour  Job  from 48.59 ABBE0 — |

| Kumar Exports L] e

sakaa to Kumar Exports 2883.11 2290.86 —

‘Remuneration | 1l ]
Ashish Kumar Sood — — 4517 42.00
Ajay Kumar Sood — -- 4517 42.00
| Arun Kumar Sood o — 4517 42.00 |

Pranav Khanna — o 2.35 2
Usha Jeyaprakash  (Current 5,50 541
CFQ)

Medical Relmbursemant

Ashish Kumar Scod - — 1.08 051

Alay Kumar Sood -] —_ | 288 34

Arun Kumar Sood - —_ 2.40 082
_Amunt_ﬁunnmun

Kumar Exports 1147 .40 108798 | —

“Amount Payable

Kumar Exports - e — =4
_Ashish Kumar Sood = —| 839 & 51
“Ajay Kumar Sood - — B.30 643
_ArTUn Kumar Sood - - B.3g .08

Pranay Khanna 0.37 0.37 |
Usha Jayaprakash = 0.64 0.65 |

26.5 Corporate Social Responsibility
The provisions of section 1356 of Companies Act, 2013 ane nod applicable on company
Therelore, no disclosure is required to be made under this clausa.

26.6 Fair Value Measuremenls

Sel oul below, is the comparison by class of the canying ameunts snd falr value of the
Campany’s Flnancial Instruments, olher than those wih carying amounis thet are
reasonabla approximations of fair values:

| LUDHANS 1
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Financial [nstruments by Carmying Value Fair Valig
calegory
A pl March | As al March | As al March As at March
31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 31,2022 |
Financial Assets af
amortised cost
| Other Financial Assets 72.78 7324 72.78 T3.24
EMan-Currant)
Trade Receables 1673.82 1337848 | 1573.02 1337.89
([Currant  and  Mon-
curment) -
Cash & Cash EET 152.86 231.I7 152.98
Equivaiants
Financial Liabilities at a
amortlsed cost
_Borrowings 632 49 454 59 623,56 | 485 58
Trade Payables 164 32 245 58 184.32 245 58
Other Financial 160,07 119,17 168.07 118.17
Liabilities {eurrent}

The fair value of financial asseis and liabilibes is included al the ameunt al which the
instrument could be exchanged in‘a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in & forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumplions were used to
estimate the far values:

The tair value of unquoted Instruments, loans from banks and ether financial lisbilities, as
well a3 other non-curment fingncial llabllities is estimaled by discounting future cash flows
uging rates currently availsble for debt on similar terms, credil rsk and remaining
maturities. In addition to being sensitive lo a reasonably possible change in the forecast
cash flows or the discount rate, the falr value of the equity instruments is also sensiiive to a
reascnably possible change in the growth rales.  The valuation requires managemant o
usd unobservable inputs in the model, of which the slgniicant unobservable inpuis are
distlosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably
possible allernatives for thase significant uncbservable inpuls and delermines their impact
on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company's inlerest-bearing borowings and loans am delermined by
using discounted cash flow mathod using discount rate that reflects the lssuer's borrowing
rate as at the end of the repanling pariod.

Long-term receivables/payabiles are avaluated by the Company based on parameters such
as intares! rates, rlsk factors, and individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the
risk characteristics of the financed project Based on this evalustion, allowances are laken
into account for the axpectad credit losses of thesa receivabies

The significant unobservable inpuls used in the fair value measurement categorized within
Lewval 3 of the fair value hisrarchy together with a quantitalive sansitivily analkysis as al a1
March 2023, are as shown balow o
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Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the fallowing hisrarchy for determiming and disclosing the fair value of
financial instrumants by valuation technigue:

Level 1 quoled (unadjusted) prices in aclhve markelis for idenfical assafs o
liabilities.

Level 2; other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effact on the
recorded fair value are obsarvable, either direcily or ndirecily.

Lovel 3: technigues that use inpuls which have a significant effec! on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data

Elrryinn Value Fair Value
March 31 2023 | Lovel1 | Level 2| Lovel 3
_Financial Assats at amortised cost — —
Other Financial Assets (Non-Currant) 72.78 . - 7278
Trade Recaivables 167382 - - | 157382
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2317 =1 - |TIET
_Financial Lllhliﬁill:l- at amortised cost . :
_Borrowings 53249 | 2] -] 63248
Trade Fayables 164,32 . - 164.32
| Other Financial Liabiiitles (current) 168.07 - - 18a07

Carrying Value Falr Value
March 31,2022 | Level1 | Level2 | Level 3

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Oiher Financial Assets (Non-Current) 7324 . . 73.24
Trade Recelvablos 133780 = -| 133788
Cash & Cash Equivalents 162,56 = . 152,06
| Financial Liabilities at amortised cost - -

| Borrowings 4B65a| -

Other Financial Liabilities {Currant) 1647 |




26.7 Earmings per share

Amount Bs in lacs)

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
‘Basic Earnings per share
_Numerator for sarnings por share
- Profit after laxation 125.83 -110.18
Denominator for earnings F'lf ll'ﬂ"i
- Weighted number of equity shares outstanding [Hns 10374 103,74
inlacs) during tha year
Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of H: 1.21 I {1,086}
10/~ gach) (Amount in Rs) S |
Diluted Earnings per share ol
‘Numerator for earnings per share
- Profit after taxation 12693 -110.18
Danominator for earnings per :m |
- Weighted number of equily shares cutstanding (Nos. | 10374 103.74
| in lacs) during the year
Earnings per ‘share-Diluted [ong equity share of Rs 1.1 i1.08})
10/- each} (Amount in Rs)

26.8 Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital Includes squdy attrbutabls to
the aquity holders of the Campany and all ather aquity reservea The primary objective of
the Company's capital management is 1o ansura that it maintaine an efficient capitsl
structhre and meximize shareholder value, The Company manages its capital structure
and makes adjusiments in light of changes in economic condilions and the requirements of
the financial covenanis. To mainiain or adjust the capltal struciure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shases. No changes were made
in the objaciives, poficies or processes for managing capital during the year anded March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

The Company monliors capilal using gearing ratio, which is nal debt divided by lolal capital
plus nat dabt, The Company’s policy is to keap the gearing atio between 15 to 35%.

Particulars | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Loans and borrowings (Net of Cash and Cash 401.22 336 63
| Equivalents) ==
Mot Debt 401.22 336,63
Equity 135782 | 123288
Total Capltal 1357 .62 1232.88
Capital and Not Debt 175884 1569.51
Gearing ratio (Net Debt/Capital and Not Debt) 22.81% | 21.45%
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26.9 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial Eabilities, other than derivalives, comprise loans and
borowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial lisbiities & 1o
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal finencial essels mclude loans,
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivatents thal are darived directly from
its-operatons

The Company's financlal risk management s an integral part of how to plan and execule
= business stralegles. The Compamy is exposed to markel risk, credit risk and kquidity
Figs.

The Company's senor management oversaes (he management of these nsks. The senior
professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and
Audit Committee. This process provides assurance 10 Company's senior managemant thal
the Company's financial risk-taking activifies sre governed by appiopriale polcles and
procedures and thal financal risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with Company policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks which are summarized as balow:

[a) Market Risk

Markel risk i Ihe risk thal the fair value of fulure cash fliows of & financial iInstrumant will
NMuctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel prlces comprize three types of risk
currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price nsks, such as equity price risk and
commodily price risk. Financial insiruments alfected by market risks include loans and
bormowings, deposids, investments and foreign currency receivabies and payables. The
sansitivity analyses in the following sections reiate to the position as at March 31 2023
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in markel variables on; the camying values
of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations, provisions; and {he non-financial assets
gnd liebilites. The sensitivity of the relevanl Profil and Loss lem s the effect of the
aasumed changes in the respective marke! risks. This s based on the financial assets and
financial abilties held as of March 31, 2023

{(b)  Interest Rate Risk

Interes! rate is the risk thal (he fair value or fulure cash llowes of a linancis! instrument Wil
fluctuata because of chenges in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk
of changas in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's short term debt
obbigation at lloaling interes! rates. The Company’s Term loan outstanding as a_ﬂpn::h 31

St 1 e

2023 comprise of fed rate loans and accordingly, are not expose o rmh

market Inferest rate h,.-*"' 5
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(e}  Credit Risk

Credit Risk Is the nisk that the counler party will not meel #s oblipgation under a financial
instrument or customsr confract, leading to a financial lgss. Tha Company is exposed o
cradit risk from s operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from e financing
acivitias, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange lrassactiong and other financial
instruments,

(i} Trade Recelvablos

Customer credit risk & managed by the company based on ils established palicy,
procedures and confrofl relating fo customer credi risk manegemeni. Outstanding
customar receivables are ragularly monitored and any shipments lo major cusiomers are
ganarally raviewed regularly by the management of the company.

An impairment analysis s performed 8t each reporting date on trade receivables by
hietime expected credil loss method bassd on provision malrix. The maximum sxposure 1o
credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of finencial assels. The
Company does not hold coltaleral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration
of risk wilh respect 1o frade receivables as low.

(i} Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credil risk from balances with banks and financial institutions |s managed by the Company
ir accordance with the policy,

The Company's maximum exposure 10 credit risk for the components of the balance sheet
st 31 March 2023 |s the carrying amounts. The Company’s maximum axposure reialing lo
financial instruments is noted in bquidity fable below. Trade Receivables and other
financial assele are written off when thera s no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as debior faffing to engage in the repayment plan with the Company.

Particulars As at March | As at March |
312023 312022

‘Financial =ssets for which alowance s
measured using 12 menths Expected Credit |

Loss Method (ECL) | -
Cash & Cash Equivaients 23127 15296 |
Other Non-Currant financial assets _ 7278 73.24

Financial assels lor which allowance s
megsured using Life time Expected Credit Loss
Method (ECL) |
Tran:la Recevable 1573.82 133789

Balances with banks are subject to low credil risks dus to good credit rum;smn&d. to
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The againg analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the imyoice

falls dus.
‘Particulars As at March 31 2023 | As ot March 31 2022
0 lo 180 Days due 1571.03 1335.10
| pas! due date |l
More than 180 days 79 279
| past due date S— p—
Total 157382 1337.89
(d}  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the nsk that the Company will not ba abla 1o seflle or mes s
obligations on fame or &t reasonable price, The Company's objective is 1o al all times
maintain optimum levels of liquidity o meel is cash and liguidity requirements. The
Company closaly monitors its liquidity position and deploys a rebust cash management
systamn. It mainfains adequale source of financing threugh the use of short-ferm bank
deposis and cash credil facility. Processes and policies refsied fo such risks ara oversesen
by senior mansgement. Management manitors the Company's liquidity position through
redling forecasis on fhe basls of expectsd cash flows. The Company assessed the
conceniration of sk with reapect 1o i3 debt and conchiged i to be ko,

Maturity profile of financial liabilitios

The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of
financial liabilitvses al the reporting dale based on contraciual undiscountad payments,

As at March 31,2023 Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total |
Borrowings 623.56 8.83 | 63248
| Oither Curment Financial Liabilities 164907 - 189,07
_j_mdﬂ Payables 164 32 - 164 32
As at March 31,2022 Less than 1 Year | Morethan 1 Year |  Total
_Hbrr_mﬂnqy _ 482 07 26.62 | 489.59
Other Cumrent Financial Lisbiities 11917 - 11817
Trade Payabies 245 58 -| 24558

2810 The balances of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advences, Deposits and Trade
Payables ara subjeat fo confirmation/ reconcilistion gnd subsequent adjustments
any.

26.11 In:opinion of the Board, all the current asssts, loans & advances have he valea on
realization in fhe ordinary course of business at least egual 1o amaunt al 1L which they

ane siated - b I"-;‘;Sﬂ-lh:
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2612 The company anjoys revenue from sale of single product and segment af cost

resulling There |s no desagregation of revenue and hance no disclosures are being
made saparately

26,13 Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated 31st March, 2023, has
made the following amendments to Ind AS which are effective 1st April. 2023;

a. Amendments to Ind AS 1, Preseriation of Financial Sialemants where he
companies are now required lo disclose material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policiea,

b, Amandments 1o Ind A5 B, Accounting policies, Changes n Accounting Estimates
and Errors where the definltion of 'change in account estimate’ has been replaced
by revised definfion of ‘accounting estimate’

c. Amendmenis to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes where (he scope of Initlal Recogndtion
Exemption {IRE) has boaan namowsd down.

Based on melimingy assazsment, the Company does nol expecl these
amendments to have any significant impact on its standalome financal statemenis

26,14 Additional Information

it

.

wil.

Details of Benami Proporty hold
As per information provided by the management the company has no Benami
property.

All the fitle deeds of immovable property are in the name of the company

Tha Company has borrowings from banks or financial matilutions on the basis of
securily of current assets, Monihly refurms or statements of current assats lied by
the Company and are in agreamant wilh the books of sccounts

Wilful Defaulter
The company has nol been declared willul defsuller by any bank or financial
Institution or other lender.

Relationship with Struck off Compantos
The company his no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 5680 of Companias Aci, 1058

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
All charges or charges of satisfaction with Registar of Companies have been
made on fima.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

Provisions of resirictions on number of layers prescribed under clause (37) of
seclion 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017, are not applhcabie on the company a8 the company has no subsidiary.
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wiil Compliance with approved Schemaea{s) of Arrangements
The company has never been involved In the Scheme of Arrangements in terms af
sections 230 o 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

i LHilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

a. The company has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds (aither
borrowed funds or share premium or any other saurces of kind of funds) to
any other person{s) or entity(les], including foraign antities {(Intermediaries)
Thi company has not provided any guarantes, security or the like o any
person or entity

b: The company has not received any fund from any parson(s) or antily (as),
including forsign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding (whather
recorded in wriling or othamwise), Furher the company has not received
any guaranias, security or tha like any guaranies, secunty or the lika o any
person or entity

% Undisclosed income
The Company has no such iransactions unrécorded in the hooks of accounts that
has- been surrenderad or disclosed B8 income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Incoms Tax Act, 1961

xi.  Datails of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
Whete the Company has nol traded of invesled in Cryplo currency or Virtual
Currancy durimg ihe linancial yoar

26.15 Previous year amounts have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm with
current yaar prasantation.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e J8
ARUN KUMAR-SOOD AY KUMAR S0O0D

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

CiM- D0GB5937 DiM- 00685585
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DATED: 30.05.2023 USHAJAYAPRAKSH PRANAV KHANNA
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